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Report of the Board of Directors

Dear Shareholders,

The Board of Directors have the pleasure to welcome you to the Twenty First Annual General Meeting and
present their report together with the audited financial statements of National General Insurance Co.
(P.J.S.C.) ('the Company’) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Overview

The Company continues to be a technically strong and a dominant player in the market backed by a solid
base of professionals within the Company and the support of reinsurers.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

1. The Company reported a net profit of AED 70.8 million for the year 2021 against AED 46.1 million
for 2020 an increase of 53.5%.

2. Gross premiums is AED 645.8 million in 2021 compared to AED 578.9 million in 2020 an increase
of 11.5% and the net underwriting income increased from AED 313.4 million in 2020 to AED 325.3
million in 2021 an increase of 3.8%.

3. Thenetclaims paid during the year 2021 amounted to AED 166.6 million compared with AED 153.7
million in 2020 increase of 8.4% and the net claims incurred during the year 2021 amounted to
AED 176.6 million compared with AED 175.5 million in 2020 increase of 0.6%

4. Underwriting profit is AED 41.5 million in 2021 compared with AED 47.7 million in 2020 a decrease
of 12.8%.

5. Gross income from investment portfolio was AED 45.8 million in 2021 compared to AED 14 million
in 2020.

6.  Total General and Management expenses including expenses directly attributable to underwriting
activities for the year 2021 is AED 73.9 million compared to AED 75.1 million in 2020.

7. Investment fund comprising of investment properties, securities and cash and bank balances was
AED 905 million at the end of 2021 compared with AED 801.2 million in 2020.

8.  The Net contract liabilities (i.e. net unearned premium reserve, and net provision for claims) at the
end of year 2021 amounted to AED 298.9 million compared with AED 270.3 million in 2020.
Included in the above is Life Assurance Fund of AED 78.5 million as at 2021 compared to AED 73.6
million in 2020.
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RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors has the pleasure in presenting the following recommendations to the shareholders:
1. Consider, discuss and approve the Board of Directors’ report.

2. Consider, discuss and approve the Auditors’ report.

3.  Consider, discuss and approve the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

4. Absolve the Chairman and Members of the Board from all responsibilities for acts and decisions
made by them in fulfilling their functions during the year ended 31 December 2021.

5. Approve the proposed appropriation of the profits as follows:

AED

Profit brought forward 158,603,649
Add comprehensive profit for the year 2021 68,591,274
Total available for distribution 227,194,923
Less

a) Director’s remuneration 5,125,000
b) Proposed Dividend — Cash 30% 44,986,234
Profit carried forward 177,083,689

6.  Appoint Auditors for the financial year 2022 and determine their fees.

To the best of our knowledge, the financial information included in the report fairly presents in all material
respects the financial condition, financial performance and cash flows of the Company as of, and for, the
periods presented in the periodic report.

The Board of Directors take pleasure in extending, on your behalf, their sincere thanks and appreciation to
H.H Sheikh Khalifa Bin Zayed Al Nahyan, the President and H.H Sheikh Mohammed Bin Rashid Al
Maktoum, Vice President, Prime Minister and Ruler of Dubai, for their kind support to the national
companies and institutions, which benefited immensely from their wise economic and social policies.

The Directors also appreciate the fruitful co-operation of all customers who had the major role in the
progress of the company.

The Directors take this opportunity to express their sincere appreciation and thanks to the Company’s
executive administration and staff for their loyalty, diligence and hard work, and to our treaty leaders and
all the Reinsurers for their continued support to the Company.

On behalf of the Board % ‘b?
. ° /

Hamad Mubarak Buamim
Chairman
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NATIONAL GENERAL INSURANCE CO. (P.J.S.C.)

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of National General Insurance Co. (P.J.S.C.) (the Company), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the statement of profit or loss,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Arab Emirates, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements in their report dated 14
February 2021.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of the
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming the auditor’s opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NATIONAL GENERAL INSURANCE CO. (P.J.S.C.) (continued)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter How our audit Addressed the Key Audit Matter

Valuation of insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets (refer to note 9 of the financial
Statements)

We focused on these balances because of the The work that we preformed to address this key audit
complexity involved in the estimation process, matter included the following procedures:
and the significant judgements that management * The evaluation and testing of key controls

and the directors make in determining the around the claims handling and reserve setting
appropriateness and adequacy of the liability. processes of the Company along with the
The liabilities which includes claims reported recognition and release of reinsurance assets.
and not settled, incurred but not reported and We examined evidence of the operation of
mathematical reserve are based on a best- controls over the valuation of individual claims
estimate of the ultimate cost of all claims reserves, such as large loss review controls and
incurred but not settled at a given date, whether internal peer reviews (whereby reviewers
reported or not, together with the related claims examine documentation supporting claims
handling costs. A range of methods may be used reserves and consider if the amount recorded in
to determine these provisions. Underlying these the  financial  statements is  valued
methods are a number of explicit or implicit appropriately).
assumptions relating to the expected settlement *  We checked samples of claims reserves and the
amount and settlement patterns of claims. respective share of reinsurance assets, through
comparing the estimated amount of the reserve
Reinsurance assets are recognised when the to appropriate documentation, such as reports
related gross insurance liability is recognised from loss adjusters and where relevant
according to the terms of the relevant reinsurance inspection of the Company’s correspondence
contracts and their recoverability is subject to the with lawyers and reinsurers where the claim are
probability of default and probable losses in the under investigation.
event of default by respective reinsurance *  We reviewed management’s reconciliation of
counterparties. the underlying company data recorded in the
policy administration systems with the data
Note 14 to the financial statements describes the used in the actuarial reserving calculations.
elements that make up the insurance contract *  We tied the insurance contract liabilities and
liabilities and reinsurance assets balance. reinsurance assets as recommended by the

Company’s actuary to the liabilities and assets
in the financial statements.

* We involved our actuarial specialist team
members, to apply industry knowledge and
experience and we compared the methodology,
models and assumptions used against
recognised actuarial practices.

*  We obtained the reinsurance treaty summary for
the year and verified the details in the summary
to the respective agreements.

*  We reviewed the ratios of reinsurance assets to
related insurance contact liabilities to identify
any variance from reinsurance treaty
arrangements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’

REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

NATIONAL GENERAL INSURANCE CO. (P.J.S.C.) (continued)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit Addressed the Key Audit Matter

Revenue recognition (refer to note 19 of the financial statements)

Gross insurance written premiums comprise the The work that we performed to address this key audit
total premiums receivable for the whole period of matter included the following procedures.

cover provided by contracts entered into during
the accounting period, and are recognised on the
date on which the policy commences. At the end
of each year, a proportion of the written
premiums of the general insurance, medical and
group life business is provided for to cover
portions of risk which have not expired at the
reporting date. The reserves are required to be
calculated in accordance with the requirements
of the Insurance Law relating to insurance
companies.

Since the Company focuses on revenue as a key
performance measure, which could create an
incentive for revenue to be recognised before the
risks and rewards have been transferred, we have
identified it as a key audit matter.

We assessed whether the Company’s revenue
recognition policies complied with IFRS and
tested the implementation of those policies.
Specifically, we considered whether the
premiums on insurance policies are accounted
for on the date of inception of policies, by
testing a sample of revenue items to insurance
contracts, with a specific focus on transactions
which occurred near 31 December 2021.

We compared the unearned premiums reserve
balance as per the financial statements to the
reserve balance computed by the Company’s
actuary.

We also tested a risk based sample of journal
entries posted to revenue accounts to identify
any unusual or irregular items, and we tested the
reconciliations between the policy master file
and its financial ledgers.

Valuation of investment properties (vefer to note 7 of the financial statements)

The Company’s investment properties are stated
at fair value based on the valuation carried out by
independent qualified valuers. The valuation was
dependent on certain key estimates which
requires the use of assumptions and significant
judgment. The valuation of investment properties
under development was also dependent on
estimated costs that will be incurred to complete
the development.

Since significant judgement, assumption and
estimation uncertainty is involved in assessing
the valuation, we have identified it as a key audit
matter.

The work that we performed to address this key audit
matter included the following procedures.

We obtained the external valuation reports for
all properties and reviewed the valuation
methodology used.

We carried out procedures to test whether
property specific standing data supplied to the
external valuers by management is
appropriate and reliable.

We have involved our Specialist to assess the
appropriateness and reasonableness of the
valuation methodology, key assumptions and
estimates used in the valuations, based on
evidence of comparable market transactions.
We reviewed title deeds of the properties to
ensure existence of the properties.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NATIONAL GENERAL
INSURANCE CO. (P.J.S.C.) (continued)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (continued)
Other information included in The Company’s 2021 Annual Report

Other information consists of the information included in the Annual Report, other than the financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon. Management is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with [FRSs, and in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association and
of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 (as amended) and UAE Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with [SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.



EY

Building a better
working world

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NATIONAL GENERAL INSURANCE CO. (P.J.S.C.) (continued)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (continued)
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosure are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law and regulations preclude public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NATIONAL GENERAL INSURANCE CO. (P.J.S.C.) (continued)

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Further,

as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 (as amended), we report that for the year

ended 31 December 2021:

i)

vi)

vii)

viii)

Further,

the Company has maintained proper books of account;
we have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

the financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable
provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company and the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015
(as amended);

the financial information included in the Directors’ report is consistent with the books of account and
records of the Company;

as disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements, the Company has investment in securities as at 31
December 2021;

note 23 to the financial statements discloses material related party transactions and balances, and the
terms under which they were conducted;

based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our attention which
causes us to believe that the Company has contravened during the financial year ended 31 December
2021 any of the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 (as amended) or its
Articles of Association, which would have a material impact on its activities or its financial position;
and

the Company has no social contributions made during the year.

as required by the U.A.E. Federal Law No. 14 of 2018 and the related Financial Regulations for

Insurance Companies, we report that we have obtained all the information and explanation we considered
necessary for the purpose of our audit.

For Emst & Young

A

Signed by:
Ashraf Abu-Sharkh

Partner

Registration No. 690

16 February 2022
Dubai, United Arab Emirates
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National General Insurance Co. (P.J.S.C.)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2021

ASSETS

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

Investment properties

Investment securities

Investments on behalf of policyholders of unit-linked products
Reinsurance contract assets

Insurance and other receivables

Deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves

Share capital

Legal reserve

General reserve

Reinsurance reserve

Cumulative change in fair value through other
ccinprehensive income (FVOCI) investments
Retained earnings

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Provision for end of service indemnity
Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance and other payables

Payable to policyholders of unit linked products
Bank borrowings

Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

HE Hémad Mubarak Buamim

irman

12
13
13
14

15

16
17
18

2021 2020

AED AED
27,227,665 25,693,406
3,706,450 2,806,035
184,704,150 180,804,595
356,419,319 267,025,960
51,535,535 47,406,148
360,553,396 353,632,724
207,972,486 203,970,443
247,944,812 79,908,538
64,397,757 226,062,235
1,504,461,570  1,387,310,084
149,954,112 149,954,112
74,977,056 74,977,056
74,977,056 74,977,056
1,846,431 83,123
1,930,661 4,124,588
229,388,850 186,260,074
533,074,166 490,376,009
11,651,763 12,432,468
659,424,205 623,896,421
241,973,451 206,392,911
51,535,535 47,406,148
6,802,450 6,806,127
971,387,404 896,934,075
1,504,461,570  1,387,310,084

Dr. Abdul Zahra A. Ali
Chief Executive Officer

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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National General Insurance Co. (P.J.S.C.)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Gross written premium
Reinsurance ceded

Net premium

Change in unearned premium/unexpired risk

Net earned premium
Reinsurance commission earned

Net underwriting income

Claims paid

Reinsurance share

Net claims paid

Notes

19
19

19

=]

Change in net outstanding claims and claims incurred but not reported 9

Net incurred claims
Commission incurred
Administrative expenses

Net underwriting expenses
Movement in life assurance fund and payable
to policyholders of unit linked products
Change in fair value of investments held for unit linked products
Net income from life investments
Total underwriting expenses
Underwriting profit
Interest and other income
Net income/ (loss) from investment properties

Net income from other investments

Net gain from investment portfolio
General and administrative expenses

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

21

9,17

20

21

22

2021 2020
AED AED
645,802,900 578,937,547
(352,640,140)  (319,113,524)
293,162,760 259,824,023
(13,878,922) 3,840,079
279,283,838 263,664,102
46,005,095 49,717,303
325,288,933 313,381,405
(313,824,764)  (284,961,456)
147,178,168 131,236,727
(166,646,596)  (153,724,729)
9,893,107)  (21,791,539)
(176,539,703)  (175,516,268)
(51,463,568)  (39,241,475)
(57,362,263)  (59,574,504)
(285,365,534)  (274,332,247)
(8,964,470) (1,461,765)
5,788,936 6,522,741
4,799,140 3,551,841
(283,741,929)  (265,719,430)
41,547,004 47,661,975
5,411,285 7,176,185
8,154,465 (4,087,701)
32,195,447 10,917,520
45,761,197 14,006,004
(16,523,000)  (15,559,297)
70,785,201 46,108,682
0.47 031




National General Insurance Co. (P.J.S.C.)

STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss

Net change in fair value of investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCT)

Total other comprehensive (loss)/ income for the year

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

2021 2020
AED AED
70,785,201 46,108,682
(2,193,927) 3,869,736
(2,193,927) 3,869,736
68,591,274 49,978,418

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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National General Insurance Co. (P.J.S.C.)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization

Dividend income

Realised gains on fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) investments

Unrealised (gain)/ loss on investment FVTPL
Change in fair value of investment properties
(Reversal)/ provision for expected credit losses
Loss on sale of investments at amortised costs
Other investment income

Provision for end of service indemnity

Operating cash flows before changes in
operating assets and liabilities
Change in insurance and other receivables
Change in insurance and other payables
Change in unearned premium reserve and life assurance fund
Change in net outstanding claims and claims incurred but not reported
Employees’ end of service indemnity paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment and intangible assets
Purchase of investments at FVTPL

Purchase of investments at FVTOCI

Proceeds from sale of investments at FVTPL

Net movement in payable to policyholders of unit linked products
Proceeds from sale of investments at amortised costs
Interest and other income

Dividends received

Change in bank deposits

(Decrease)/ increase in bank borrowings

Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Directors’ remuneration paid

Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

NET (DECREASE)/ INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR (NOTE 11)

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2021 2020
AED AED
70,785,201 46,108,682
2,543,731 2,360,467
(5,499,718) (5,764,544)
(14,048,943) (6,121,892)
(13,700,764) 686,875
(3,899,555) 8,428,929
(1,931,166) 4,062,984

- 20,000
(9,044,508)  (11,255,372)
1,485,970 1,724,332

26,690,248 40,250,461
(2,070,877)  (55,709,234)
35,580,540 54,885,190
18,714,005 (2,378,314)
9,893,107 21,791,539
(2,266,675) (547,947)
86,540,348 58,291,695
(4,978,405) (387,560)
(178,653,766)  (178,134,759)
(51,306,242)  (36,074,440)
161,993,042 58,965,212

4,129,387 ;

- 9,172,500
9,044,508 11,255,372
5,499,718 5,764,544

(168,036,274) 202,470,597
(3,677) 6,806,127
(222,311,709) 79,837,593
(3,400,000) (1,745,850)
(22,493,117)  (14,995,411)
(25893,117)  (16,741,261)
(161,664,478) 121,388,027
226,062,235 104,674,208
64,397,757 226,062,235
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National General Insurance Co. (P.J.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2021

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

National General Insurance Co. (P.J.S.C.) (“the Company”) was originally incorporated as a Private Limited Liability
Company on 19 November 1980. Subsequently, the Company was converted to a Public Joint Stock Company with effect
from 12 September 2001.

The Company is registered under UAE Federal Law No. 2 of 2015 (as amended) in the Emirate of Dubai and underwrites
all classes of life and general insurance business as well as certain reinsurance business in accordance with the provisions
of the UAE Federal Law no. 6.of 2007 relating to Establishment of Insurance Authority and Regulation of Insurance
Operations. The Company is listed on Dubai Financial Market, United Arab Emirates.

The registered office of the Company is at the NGI House, P.O. Box 154, Dubai, United Arab Emirates.

Federal Law Decree No. 32 of 2021 which repeals and replaces Federal Law No. 2 of 2015 (as amended) on Commercial
Companies was issued on 20 September 2021 and is effective from 2 January 2022. The Company is in the process of
reviewing the new provisions and will apply the requirements thereof no later than one year from the date on which the
new Decree Law came into effect.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for revaluation of certain financial
instruments and investment properties carried at fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for assets.

The Company presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity, with a distinction based on
expectations regarding recovery or settlement within twelve months after the reporting date (current) and more than
twelve months after the reporting date (non-current), presented in the notes.

Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and applicable requirements of the Articles of Association of the Company and of United Arab Emirates Laws.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

New standards and interpretations effective after 1 January 2021

The following new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021,
have been adopted in these financial statements. The Company has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or
amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective. The application of these revised IFRSs has not had any material
impact on the amounts reported for the current and prior years but may affect the accounting for future transactions or
arrangements.

e Amendments to I[FRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 relating to 'Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Phase 2, that address issues that might affect financial reporting after the reform of an interest rate benchmark,
including its replacement with alternative benchmark rates.

e Amendment to [FRS 16 ‘Leases’ to provide lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a COVID-19-
related rent concession is a lease modification. The effective date is 1 June 2021.

New and revised IFRS standards and interpretations but not yet effective
The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial
statements are disclosed below.

The Company has not yet applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:
e IFRS 17: Insurance Contracts. Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2023
e Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current. Effective for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
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National General Insurance Co. (P.J.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2021

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

New and revised IFRS standards and interpretations but not yet effective (continued)
e Amendments relating to IAS 16, IAS 37, IFRS 3 and some annual improvements on IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IAS 41
and IFRS 16 (effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2022)
e Amendments to IAS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates. Effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023. Early adoption is permitted.
e Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Disclosure of Accounting Policies. Effective for annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted.

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted in the Company’s
financial statements as and when they are applicable and adoption of these new standards, interpretations and
amendments, except for IFRS 17, mentioned below, may have no material impact on the financial statements of the
Company in the period of initial application.

Management anticipates that IFRS 17 will be adopted in the Company’s financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1 January 2023. The application of IFRS 17 may have significant impact on amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Company’s financial statements in respect of its insurance contracts. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effects of the application of this standard until the Company
performs a detailed review.

3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The summary of significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently applied to each of the years presented.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
= In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

= Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

= Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

= Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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National General Insurance Co. (P.J.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2021

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Insurance contracts

Classification
The Company issues contracts that transfer either insurance risk or both insurance and financial risks.

Contracts under which the Company accepts significant insurance risk from another party (the policyholder) by
agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the
policyholder are classified as insurance contracts. Insurance risk is significant if an insured event could cause the
Company to pay significant additional benefits due to happening of the insured event compared to its non happening.

Insurance contracts may also transfer some financial risk. Financial risk is the risk of a possible future change in one
or more of a specified interest rate, security price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates,
credit rating or credit index or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not
specific to a party to the contract.

Contracts where insurance risk is not significant are classified as investment contracts. Once a contract is classified
as an insurance contract it remains classified as an insurance contract until all rights and obligations are extinguished
or expired.

Some insurance contracts and investment contracts contain discretionary participating features (DPF) which entitle
the contract holder to receive, as a supplement to the standard guaranteed benefits, additional benefits;

= that are likely to be a significant portion of the total contractual benefits;
=  whose amount or timing is contractually at the discretion of the insurer;
= that are contractually based on;

1) the performance of a specified pool of contracts or a specified type of contract,
(ii) realised/unrealised investment returns on a specified pool of assets held by the issuer or,
(iii) the profit or loss of the Company, fund or other entity that issues that contract.

Under IFRS 4, DPF can be either treated as an element of equity or as a liability, or can be split between the two
elements. The Company policy is to treat all DPF as a liability within insurance or investment contract liabilities.

The policyholder bears the financial risks relating to some insurance contracts or investment contracts. Such products
are usually unit-linked contracts.

Recognition and measurement
Insurance contracts are classified into two main categories, depending on the nature of the risk, duration of the risk
and whether or not the terms and conditions are fixed.

These contracts are general insurance contracts and life assurance contracts.

General insurance contracts

Gross premiums written reflect business incepted during the year and exclude any fees and other amounts collected
with and calculated based on premiums. These are recognised when underwriting process is complete and policies
are issued. Premiums are recognized as revenue (earned premiums) proportionately over the period of coverage.

The earned portion of premium is recognised as an income and are shown in the profit or loss before deduction of
commission. Premiums are earned from the date of attachment of risk over the indemnity period and unearned
premium is calculated using the basis described below:

Life assurance contracts

In respect of the short term life assurance contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue (earned premiums)
proportionately over the period of coverage. The portion of the premium received in respect of in-force contracts that
relates to unexpired risks at the end of the reporting period is reported as the unearned premium liability. Premiums
are shown before the deduction of the commission.

In respect of long term life assurance contracts, premium are recognised as revenue (earned premiums) when they
become payable by the contract holder. Premiums are shown before deduction of commission.
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National General Insurance Co. (P.J.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2021

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Insurance contracts (continued)

Recognition and measurement (continued)

Life assurance contracts (continued)
Premiums for group credit life policies are recognised when it is paid by the contract holder.

A liability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in future is recorded when the premiums are
recognised. The liability is based on the assumptions as to mortality, persistency, maintenance expenses and
investment income that are established at the time the contract is issued. A margin for adverse deviation is included
in the assumptions.

Where a life assurance contract has a single premium or limited number of premium payments due over a significantly
shorter period than the period during which the benefits are provided, the excess of the premiums payable over the
valuation premiums is deferred and recognised as income in line with the decrease of unexpired insurance risk of the
contract in-force or for annuities in force, in line with the decrease of the amount of future benefits expected to be
paid.

The liabilities are recalculated at the end of each reporting period using the assumptions established at the inception
of the contract.

Claims and benefits payable to contract holders are recorded as expenses when they are incurred.

Unearned premium provision

The unearned premium considered in the insurance contract liabilities comprise the estimated proportion of the gross
premiums written which relates to the periods of insurance subsequent to the statement of financial position date.
UPR is calculated using the 1/365 method except for marine cargo and general accident. The UPR for marine cargo
is recognised as fixed proportion of the written premiums as required in the financial regulation issued under UAE
Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, and UPR for general accident assumes a linear increase in risk with the duration of the
project such that the risk faced is 100% at the expiry of the contract, the rate at which the premium is earned is deemed
to increase at the same rate at which the risk faced increases over the lifetime of the policy. Unearned premiums for
individual life business are considered by the Company's actuary in the calculation for life reserve fund.

Claims

Claims incurred comprise the settlement and the internal and external handling costs paid and changes in the
provisions for outstanding claims arising from events occurring during the financial period. Where applicable,
deductions are made for salvage and their recoveries.

Claims outstanding comprise provisions for the Company's estimate of the ultimate cost of settling all claims incurred
but unpaid at the reporting date whether reported or not, and related internal and external claims handling expense
reduced by expected salvage and other recoveries. Claims outstanding are assessed by reviewing individual reported
claims. Provisions for claims outstanding are not discounted. Adjustments to claims provisions established in prior
periods are reflected in the financial statements of the period in which the adjustments are made. The methods used,
and the estimates made, are reviewed regularly. Provision is also made for any claims incurred but not reported
(“IBNR?”) at the date of statement of financial position using a range of standard actuarial claim projection techniques,
based on empirical data and current assumptions that may include a margin for adverse deviation as required by the
regulations.

Provision for premium deficiency / liability adequacy test

Provision is made for premium deficiency arising from general insurance contracts and short term group life
contracts where the expected value of claims and expenses attributable to the unexpired periods of policies in force
at the reporting date exceeds the unearned premiums provision and already recorded claim liabilities in relation to
such policies.
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National General Insurance Co. (P.J.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2021

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Reinsurance

Contracts entered into by the Company with reinsurers under which the Company is compensated for losses on one
or more contracts issued by the Company and that meet the classification requirements for insurance contracts are
recognised as reinsurance contracts. Contracts that do not meet these classification requirements are classified as
financial assets. Insurance contracts entered into by the Company under which the contract holder is another insurer,
are included in insurance contracts. The benefits to which the Company is entitled under its reinsurance contracts are
recognised as reinsurance contract assets.

The Company cedes reinsurance in the normal course of business for the purpose of limiting its net loss potential
through the diversification of its risks. Assets, liabilities and income and expense arising from ceded reinsurance
contracts are presented separately from the assets, liabilities, income and expense from the related insurance contracts
because the reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its direct obligations to its policyholders.

Amounts due to and from reinsurers are accounted for in a manner consistent with the related insurance policies and
in accordance with the relevant reinsurance contracts. Reinsurance premiums are deferred and expensed using the
same basis as used to calculate unearned premium reserves for related insurance policies. The deferred portion of
ceded reinsurance premiums is included in reinsurance assets.

Reinsurance assets are assessed for impairment on a regular basis. A reinsurance asset is deemed impaired if there is
objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after its initial recognition, that the Company may not recover
all amounts due, and that event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the Company will receive from
the reinsurer. Impairment losses on reinsurance assets are recognised in statement of profit or loss in the year in which
they are incurred.

Profit commission in respect of reinsurance contracts is recognised on an accrual basis. Reinsurance assets or
liabilities are derecognized when the contractual obligations/rights are extinguished or expire or when the contract is
transferred to another party.

Deferred acquisition cost

For general insurance contracts, the deferred acquisition cost asset represents the position of acquisition costs which
corresponds to the proportion of gross premiums written that is unearned at the reporting date. Commission income
related to underwriting activities are recognised on a time proportion basis over the effective period of policy using
the same basis as described for unearned premium reserve.

Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary with and are related to securing new contracts and renewing existing
contracts are capitalised as an intangible asset (DAC). All other costs are recognised as expenses when incurred.

Insurance receivables and payables
Amounts due from and to policyholders, agents and reinsurers are financial instruments and are included in insurance
receivables and payables, and not in insurance contract liabilities or reinsurance assets.

Life assurance fund

The fund is determined by the independent actuarial valuation of future policy benefits. Actuarial assumptions include
a margin for adverse deviation and generally vary by type of policy, year of issue and policy duration. Mortality and
withdrawal rate assumptions are based on experience. Adjustments to the balance of fund are affected by charges or
credits to income. Certain generated returns are accrued and provided for in the life fund.

Unit linked liabilities
For unit linked policies, liability is equal to the policy account values. The account value is the number of units times
the bid price.

Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets

Insurance contract liabilities towards outstanding claims are made for all claims intimated to the Company and still
unpaid at the statement of financial position date, in addition for claims incurred but not reported and Life assurance
fund. Outstanding claims provisions are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at
the end of the reporting period after reduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries. Delays can be
experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, therefore the ultimate cost of claims cannot
be known with certainty at the end of the reporting period. The liability is not discounted for the time value of money.
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National General Insurance Co. (P.J.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2021

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets (continued)
No provision for equalisation or catastrophic reserves is recognised. The liability is derecognised when it is expired,
discharged or cancelled.

The reinsurers' portion towards the above outstanding claims, claims incurred but not reported and unearned premium
is classified as reinsurance contract assets in the financial statements.

Salvage and subrogation reimbursements
Estimates of salvage and subrogation reimbursements are considered as an allowance in the measurement of the
insurance liability for claims.

Revenue (other than insurance revenue)
Revenue (other than insurance revenue) comprises the following:

Fee and commission income
Fee and commissions received or receivable which do not require the Company to render further service are
recognised as revenue by the Company on the effective commencement or renewal dates of the related policies.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment has been established.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Rental income
Rental income from investment property which are leased under operating leases are recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

General and administrative expenses

Direct expenses are charged to the respective departmental revenue accounts. Indirect expenses are allocated to
departmental revenue accounts on the basis of gross written premiums of each department. Other administration
expenses are charged to profit or loss as unallocated general and administrative expenses.

Leases

The Company as lessee

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered of low value (i.e., below
USD 5,000). Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Company as lessor
The Company enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to some of its investment properties.

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.
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National General Insurance Co. (P.J.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2021

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property and equipment

Recognition and measurement
Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and identified impairment losses.
Land is not depreciated.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a
working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located.

Where parts of an item of property or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of the property and equipment and is recognised net within other income/other
expenses in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property or equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be
measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognised in statement of
profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of individual assets are
assessed and if a component has a useful life that is different from the remainder of that asset, that component is
depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised in statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
component of an item of property and equipment.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
No depreciation is charged on freehold land and capital-work-in-progress. Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in the profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives with their capabilities for various categories of property and equipment is as follows :

Office building 30 years
Other property and equipment 4 years

Intangible assets (software)

Software acquired by the Company is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any identified impairment
losses. Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Software is amortised on a straight line basis in the statement of profit or loss over its estimated useful life, from the
date that it is available for use. The estimated useful life of software for the current and comparative periods are four
years. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.
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National General Insurance Co. (P.J.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2021

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties are held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but
not for sale in the ordinary course of business, used in providing services or for administrative purposes. Investment
properties are measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently at fair value with any change therein
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

The Company determines fair value on the basis of valuations provided by two independent valuers who hold a
recognised and relevant professional qualification and have recent experience in the location and category of the
investment properties being valued.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment properties. The cost of self-
constructed investment properties include the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable
to bringing the investment properties to a working condition for their intended use and capitalised borrowing costs.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of their tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Non-derivative financial assets and liabilities

Recognition

The Company initially recognises insurance receivables and insurance payables on the date at which they are
originated. All other financial assets and liabilities (including assets and liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss) are initially recognised on the trade date at which the Company becomes party to the contractual
provision of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

All recognised financial assets and financial liabilities are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised
cost or fair value.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Non-derivative financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Classification
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
At inception a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost or fair value.

A financial asset qualifies for amortised cost measurement only if it meets both of the following two conditions:

e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cashflows;
and

e the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principle and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

If a financial asset does not meet both of these conditions, then it is measured at fair value.

The Company makes an assessment of a business model at portfolio level as this reflect the best way the business is
managed and information is provided to the management.

In making an assessment of whether an asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows, the Company considers:

management's stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice;
how management evaluates the performance of the portfolio;

whether management's strategy focus on earning contractual interest revenue;

the degree of frequency of any expected asset sales;

the reason of any asset sales; and

whether assets that are sold are held for an extended period of time relative to their contractual maturity or are
sold shortly after acquisition or an extended time before maturity.

Insurance and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amoritised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at FVTPL are:
1) assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPI; or/and
(i1)  assets that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows or held
to collect and sell; or
(iii)  assets designated at FVTPL using the fair value option.

These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

Equity instruments at FVOCI

Investments in equity instruments/funds at FVOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cumulative changes in fair value reserve. The cumulative gain
or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments in equity instruments/funds, but
reclassified to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Company’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Non-derivative financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Classification (continued)

Debt instruments at amortised cost or at FVOCI

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Company determines whether newly recognised financial assets are part
of an existing business model or whether they reflect the commencement of a new business model. The Company
reassess its business models each reporting period to determine whether the business models have changed since the
preceding period. For the current and prior reporting period, the Company has not identified a change in its business
models.

When a debt instrument measured at FVOCI is derecognised, the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in OCI
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. In contrast, for an equity investment designated as measured at FVOCI,
the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in OCI is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss but transferred
within equity.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI are subject to impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, balances with the banks and fixed deposits with original maturities
of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value,
and are used by the Company in the management of short-term commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the statement of financial position.

Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments
Ordinary shares of the Company are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary
shares are recognised as a deduction from equity.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Insurance and other payables are classified as ‘other financial liabilities’ and are initially measured at fair value, net
of transaction costs. Other financial liabilities (except for deferred reinsurance commission) are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield
basis except for short term payable when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Impairment

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt instruments that are
measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI, cash and bank balances, insurance receivables and reinsurance receivables.
The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Company always recognises lifetime ECL (expected credit losses) for insurance receivables and reinsurance
receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Non-derivative financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Impairment (continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Company expects to receive).

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, for which they
are measured as 12-month ECL:

e  Debt investment securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
e Other financial instruments on which credit risk has not increased significantly since their initial recognition.

The Company considers a debt security to have low credit risk when their credit risk rating is equivalent to the globally
understood definition of 'investment grade'.

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting date. Lifetime ECLs are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:

e  Probability of default (PD);
e Loss given default (LGD);
e  Exposure at default (EAD).

These parameters are generally derived from internally developed statistical models and other historical data. They
are adjusted to reflect forward-looking information.

The Company has adopted simplified approach in case of insurance and other receivables. In case of financial assets
for which simplified approach is adopted lifetime expected credit loss is recognised.

Details of these statistical parameters/inputs are as follows:
PD - The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon.

LGD - The loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive,
including from the realization of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

EAD - The exposure at default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected
changes in the exposure after the reporting date.

Forward-looking information

The measurement of expected credit losses considers information about past events and current conditions as well as
reasonable and supportable forecasts of future events and economic conditions. The estimation and application of
forward-looking information requires significant judgement.

Macroeconomic factors

In its models, the company relies on a broad range of forward looking information as economic inputs, such as: GDP,
GDP annual growth rate, unemployment rates, inflation rates, interest rates, etc. Various macroeconomic variables
considered are Brent, CPI, Stock, Inflation and Loans to private sector.

The inputs and models used for calculating expected credit losses may not always capture all characteristics of the
market at the date of the financial statements.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Non-derivative financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Impairment (continued)
Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

Financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Definition of default

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms that the
Company would not otherwise consider, indication that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance
of an active market for a security, or other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse change in the
payment status of borrowers or issuers, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the Company.

In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Company considers indicators that are:
e Qualitative - e.g. breaches of covenant,
e Quantitative - e.g. overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same issuer to the Company; and
e Based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual right to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risk and rewards of the
ownership are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and it does not retain control on the financial asset. Any interest in transferred financial assets that
qualify for derecognition that is carried or retained by the Company is recognised as separate asset or liability in the
statement of financial position. On derecognition of financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset transferred), and consideration received (including
any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its statement of financial position,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the financial assets or a portion of them. If all or
substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognised.

In transactions in which the Company neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the Company continues to recognise the asset to the extent of
its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value of the transferred
asset.

In certain transactions the Company retains the obligation to service the transferred financial asset for a fee. The
transferred asset is derecognised if it meets the derecognition criteria. An asset or liability is recognised for the
servicing contract, depending on whether the servicing fee is more than adequate (asset) or is less than adequate
(liability) for performing the services. The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligation
are discharged or cancelled or expire.

Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividend is approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Reinsurance reserves

In accordance with Article 34 of Insurance Authority’s Board of Directors Decision No.(23) of 2020, Company shall
allocate an amount equals to 0.5% of the total reinsurance premiums ceded to reinsurance reserve. This reserve shall
be accumulated year after year and may not be disposed off without the written approval of the Director General of
the Insurance Authority
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements of the Company are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the financial statements, the results and financial
position of the Company are expressed in Arab Emirates Dirhams (“AED”), which is the functional currency of the
Company and the presentation currency for the financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Employee terminal benefits

The Company provides end of service benefits to its expatriate employees. The entitlement to these benefits is usually
based upon the employees' length of service and the completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of
these benefits are accrued over the period of employment and are not less than the liability arising under UAE Labour
Law.

The Company contributes to the pension scheme for UAE nationals under the UAE pension and social security law.
This is a defined contribution pension plan and the Company's contributions are charged tothe statement of profit or
loss in the period to which they relate. In respect of this scheme, the Company has a legal and constructive obligation
to pay the fixed contributions as they fall due and no obligations exist to pay the future benefits.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company's
other components. All operating segments' operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company's Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and
for which discrete financial information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets (primarily the Company's
headquarters) and head office expenses.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts audit intends either to
settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRSs, or of gains and losses arising
from a group of similar transactions such as in the Company's trading activity.

Directors’ remuneration
Pursuant to Article 169 of Federal Law No. 2 of 2015 and in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, the Directors are entitled for remuneration which shall not exceed 10% of the net profits after deducting
depreciation and reserves.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3 to these financial statements,
management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

4.1  Critical accounting judgements

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see 4.2 below), that management
has made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Classification of investments

Management decides on acquisition of an investment whether it should be classified as FVTPL, FVTOCI or FV at
amortised cost. The Company classifies investments at FVTPL if they are acquired primarily for the purpose of
making a short term profit by the dealers.

Equity instruments are classified as FVOCI securities when they are considered by management to be strategic equity
investments that are not held to benefit from changes in their fair value and are not held for trading.

Management is satisfied that the Company’s investments in securities are appropriately classified.

Classification of properties

In the process of classifying properties, management has made various judgments. Judgments are needed to determine
whether a property qualifies as an investment property, property and equipment, property under development and/or
property held for sale. Management develops criteria so that it can exercise that judgment consistently in accordance
with the definitions of investment property, property and equipment, property under development and property held
for sale. In making its judgment, management has considered the detailed criteria and related guidance set out in [AS
2 — Inventories, IAS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment, and IAS 40 — Investment Property, with regards to the
intended use of the property.

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business model test.
The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed
together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant
evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that
affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

4.1  Critical accounting judgements (continued)

Business model assessment (continued)

The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income
that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are
consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s
continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to
be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective
change to the classification of those assets. No such changes were required during the years presented.

Insurance contract classification
Contracts are classified as insurance contracts where they transfer significant insurance risk from the holder of the
contract to the Company.

There are a number of contracts sold where the Company exercises judgement about the level of insurance risk
transferred. The level of insurance risk is assessed by considering whether there are any scenarios with commercial
substance in which the Company is required to pay significant additional benefits. These benefits are those which
exceed the amounts payable if no insured event were to occur. These additional amounts include claims liability and
assessment costs, but exclude the loss of the ability to charge the holder of the contract for future services.

4.2  Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

The significant judgements made by Management in applying the Company’s accounting policies and the key sources
of estimation uncertainty were the same as those that applied to the financial statements as at and for the year ended
31 December 2020.

Individual life insurance
The assumptions used in the actuarial valuations for life fund are consistently applied and these assumptions are based
on mortality and withdrawal rate assumptions.

Provision for outstanding claims whether reported or not

The estimation of ultimate liability arising from the claims made under insurance contracts is the Company’s most
critical accounting estimate. There are sources of uncertainty that need to be considered in the estimate of the liability
that the Company will eventually pay for such claims. Estimates have to be made at the end of the reporting period
for both the expected ultimate cost of claims reported and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not
reported (“IBNR™). Liabilities for unpaid reported claims are estimated using the input of assessments for individual
cases reported to the Company and management estimates based on past claims settlement trends for the claims
incurred but not reported. At the end of each reporting period, prior year claims estimates are reassessed for adequacy
and changes are made to the provision.

Provision for outstanding claims whether reported or not (continued)

The Company has performed an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on its contractual arrangements and
provisions for outstanding claims and claims incurred but not reported which included regular sensitivity analyses.
The Company determined that there is no material impact on its risk position and provision balances for outstanding
claims and claims incurred but not reported, as at 31 December 2021. The Company will continue monitoring its
claims experience and the developments around the pandemic and revisit the assumptions and methodologies in future
reporting periods.

Calculation of loss allowance

When measuring ECL the Company uses reasonable and supportable forward looking information, which is based on
assumptions for the future movement of different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other. Loss
given default is an estimate of the loss arising on default. Forward looking factor considered as the GDP of U.A.E.
Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood
of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations
of future conditions.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

4.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Liability adequacy test

At each statement of financial position date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of insurance
contract liabilities. The Company makes use of the best estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims handling
and administration expenses, as well as investment income from the assets backing such liabilities in evaluating the
adequacy of the liability. Any deficiency is immediately charged to the profit or loss.

Valuation of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties were determined by external, independent property valuers, having appropriate
recognised professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued.
The independent valuers provide the fair value of the Company's investment properties portfolio annually.

Valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs
The following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring the fair value of investment properties, as well
as the significant unobservable inputs used.

The Company has taken the highest and best use fair values for the fair value measurement of its investment
properties.

Valuation technique Interrelationship between key unobservable

Significant unobservable

inputs inputs
and fair value measurements
1) Income valuation The estimated fair value increase/decrease if:
approach - Expected market rental growth rate were higher
2) Sales comparative - The risk adjusted discount rates were
valuation approach lower/higher
3) Residual approach -Expected market rental - The property is not free hold
growth rate - The property is subject to any covenants, rights
-Free hold property and
-Free of covenants, third party obligations
rights and obligations - The property is subject to any adverse legal
-Statutory and legal validity notices /
-Condition of the property, judgment
location and plot area - The property is subject to any defect / damages
-Recent sales value of comparable - The property is subject to sales value
properties fluctuations of

surrounding properties in the area.

Depreciation of property and equipment

The cost of property and equipment is depreciated over the estimated useful life, which is based on expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the repair and maintenance program and technological obsolescence arising from
changes and the residual value. Management has not considered any residual value as it is deemed immaterial.

Impairment of intangible assets

The period of amortisation of the intangible assets is determined based on the pattern in which the asset’s future
economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company and technological obsolescence. Management has
concluded that no impairment of intangible assets is required based on impairment test performed by the Company
as of the reporting date.
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National General Insurance Co. (P.J.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2021

6 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer
software
AED
Cost:

At 31 December 2019 12,034,940

Additions during the year 141,054

At 31 December 2020 12,175,994

Additions during the year 2,018,507

Transfer/adjustments (135,870)

At 31 December 2021 14,058,631
Accumulated amortization:

At 31 December 2019 8,516,172

Charge for the year 853,787

At 31 December 2020 9,369,959

Charge for the year 1,059,336

Transfer/adjustments (77,114)

At 31 December 2021 10,352,181
Carrying amount:

At 31 December 2021 3,706,450
At 31 December 2020 2,806,035
7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2021 2020
AED AED
At 1 January 180,804,595 189,233,524
Change in fair value 3,899,555 (8,428,929)
At 31 December 184,704,150 180,804,595
2021 2020
AED AED
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
Land 119,627,060 112,749,999 119,627,060 111,929,595
Office building 63,156,439 71,954,151 63,156,439 68,875,000
At 31 December 182,783,499 184,704,150 182,783,499 180,804,595

Investment properties include two plots of land and rented out portion of a commercial building. All investment properties
are located in the U.A.E.

The carrying amount of investment properties are the fair value of the properties as determined by independent appraisers
having an appropriate recognized professional qualification and recent experience in the location and category of the
property being valued and is reviewed by the Board of Directors on a yearly basis. Fair values were determined based on
income valuation approach, sales comparative approach and open market value basis.
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7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The properties have been categorized as Level 3 based on the inputs to the valuation technique used; and in estimating the

fair value, the highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

The rental income and operating expenses relating to these properties are as follows:

2021 2020
AED AED
Rental income 6,238,780 6,105,287
Operating expenses (1,983,870) (1,764,059)
Net rental income 4,254,910 4,341,228
8 INVESTMENT SECURITIES
The Company’s investment securities at the end of reporting period are detailed below.
2021 2020
Notes AED AED
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 8.1 293,077,912 248,626,931
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 8.2 100,342,343 51,230,028
Financial assets at amortised cost 15,000,000 15,000,000
Less: Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) (465,401) (424,851)
407,954,854 314,432,108
Investments securities — Geographic concentration
Investments made:
- Within U.AE. 187,262,982 188,672,877
- Outside U.A.E. 220,691,872 125,759,231
Total 407,954,854 314,432,108
8.1 FVTPL investments
Equity investments — quoted 141,596,693 105,112,042
Equity investments — unquoted 10,000,000 10,000,000
Fixed income investments/ bonds — quoted 89,945,684 86,108,741
Investments held on behalf of policyholders' unit linked products (Note 17) 51,535,535 47,406,148
Total 293,077,912 248,626,931
8.2 FVOCI investments
Equity investments — unquoted 51,209,909 -
Fixed income investments/bonds — quoted 49,132,434 51,230,028
Total 100,342,343 51,230,028
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8 INVESTMENT SECURITIES (continued)

FVTPL and FVOCI investments with fair value of AED 21.9 million (2020: AED 15.1 million) are pledged to a bank
against loan granted to the Company (see Note 18).

The movements in investments securities are as follows:

At FVYOCI At FVTPL

2021 2020 2021 2020

AED AED AED AED
At 1 January 51,230,028 11,285,852 248,626,931 124,022,367
Purchased during the year 51,306,242 36,074,440 178,653,766 178,134,759
Disposals during the year - - (147,903,549) (52,843,320)
Change in fair value (2,193,927) 3,869,736 13,700,764 (686,875)
At 31 December 100,342,343 51,230,028 293,077,912 248,626,931

Financial investments at amortised costs represents bonds with carrying interest at the rates of 0.7% to 4.35% per
annum (2020: 0.7% to 4.35%). The bonds are redeemable at par from 2021 to 2022 based on their maturity dates.

Movements in provision for ECL are as follows:

2021 2020

AED AED
Balance at the beginning of the year 424,851 36,252
Charge during the year 40,550 388,599
Reversal for the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 465,401 424,851

Investment Concentration

The UAE Insurance Authority has set a maximum limit for aggregate exposure in various categories of investments.
As at 31 December 2021, the Company has investments more than the limit in some categories particularly equity
instruments within and outside UAE, and deposits and other debt instruments.
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9 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS

Insurance contract liabilities

Claims reported unsettled

Claims incurred but not reported

Life assurance fund

Unearned premium and unexpired risk

Total insurance contract liabilities, gross

Re-insurance contract assets

Claims reported unsettled

Claims incurred but not reported

Life assurance fund

Unearned premium and unexpired risk

Total reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities

Net

Claims reported unsettled

Claims incurred but not reported

Life assurance fund (Note 9.2)
Unearned premium and unexpired risk

2021 2020

AED AED
222,224,733 220,914,773
88,089,942 94,065,912
96,817,739 82,195,192
252,282,791 226,720,544
659,424,205 623,896,421
172,065,979 177,527,617
46,980,586 56,069,065
18,333,185 8,545,721
123,173,646 111,490,321
360,553,396 353,632,724
50,158,754 43,387,156
41,118,356 37,996,847
78,484,554 73,649,471
129,109,145 115,230,223
298,870,809 270,263,697
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National General Insurance Co. (P.J.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2021

9 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

9.2 Life assurance fund
AED
31 December 2019 78,474,959
Decrease (4,825,488)
31 December 2020 73,649,471
Increase 4,835,083
31 December 2021 78,484,554
9.3 Claim development table
Underwriting year

2018 2019 2020 2021 Total

AED AED AED AED AED
Gross
Estimate of net incurred claims costs
- At the end of underwriting year 204,466,789 196,242,815 191610684 383,498,709 975,818,997
- One year later 269,778,540 254,639,311 357,888,616 - 882,306,467
- Two years later 272,641,682 279311006 - - 551,952,688
- Three years later 282,285,131 - - - 282,285,131
Current estimate of incurred claims 282,285,131 279,311,006 357,888,616 383,498,709 1,302,983,462

Cumulative payments to date

(275,305,847) (264,622,234) (246,602,038) (219,456,740)(1,005,986,859)

Liability recognised 6,979,284 14,688,772 111,286,578 164,041,969 296,996,603
Liability in respect of prior years 13,327,072
Total liability included in the

statement of financial position 310,323,675
Net
Estimate of net incurred claims costs
- At the end of underwriting year 89,798,425 98,466,298 98,495,102 183,942,513 470,702,338
- One year later 115,427,254 124,123,936 135,630,139 - 375,181,329
- Two years later 116,840,562 137,254,792 - - 254,095,354
- Three years later 118,373,944 - - - 118,373,944
Current estimate of incurred claims 118,373,944 137,254,792 135,630,139 183,942,513 575,201,388

Cumulative payments to date

(117,439,331) (130,101,661) (121,989,243) (115,067,573) (484,597,808)

Liability recognised 934,613 7,153,131 13,640,896 68,874,940 90,603,580
Liability in respect of prior years 673,530
91,277,110

9.4

Summary of the Actuary's report on the Technical Provisions

Actuarial estimation of the insurance liabilities has been performed by the independent actuary in accordance with the
requirement of new financial regulations issued under Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 pertaining to the insurance companies
and agents. Estimates are made for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not yet reported at the reporting
date (IBNR) using a range of standard actuarial claim projection techniques, based on empirical data and current

assumptions that may include a margin for adverse deviation.
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9 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

9.4 Summary of the Actuary's report on the Technical Provisions (continued)

Gross reserve

31 December 2021

Reserve for outstanding claims (including IBNR)
Unearned premium and unexpired risk
Life assurance fund

31 December 2020

Reserve for outstanding claims (including IBNR)
Unearned premium and unexpired risk
Life assurance fund

Net reserve

31 December 2021

Reserve for outstanding claims (including IBNR)
Unearned premium and unexpired risk
Life assurance fund

31 December 2020

Reserve for outstanding claims (including IBNR)
Unearned premium and unexpired risk
Life assurance fund

Life General
insurance insurance Total
AED AED AED
31,252,989 279,070,686 310,323,675
2,163,887 250,118,904 252,282,791
96,817,739 - 96,817,739
130,234,615 529,189,590 659,424,205
Life General
insurance insurance Total
AED AED AED
30,094,899 284,885,786 314,980,685
1,816,995 224,903,549 226,720,544
82,195,192 - 82,195,192
114,107,086 509,789,335 623,896,421
Life General
insurance insurance Total
AED AED AED
7,691,931 83,585,179 91,277,110
1,169,272 127,939,873 129,109,145
78,484,554 - 78,484,554
87,345,757 211,525,052 298,870,809
Life General
insurance insurance Total
AED AED AED
7,116,685 74,267,318 81,384,003
1,007,604 114,222,619 115,230,223
73,649,471 - 73,649,471
81,773,760 188,489,937 270,263,697
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10  INSURANCE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Premium receivable
Reinsurance companies

Insurance agents and brokers

Due from related parties

Less: Provision for ECL

Accrual of interest and other income

Deferred acquisition cost

Advances and prepayments

Other receivables

Movements in provision for ECL are as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
(Reversal)/ provision during the year

Written off during the year

Balance at the end of the year

The ageing analysis of insurance receivables as of 2021 is as follows.

2021

Premium receivable
Reinsurance companies
Insurance brokers/agents
Due from related parties

Total

2020

Premium receivable
Reinsurance companies
Insurance brokers/agents
Due from related parties

Total

2021 2020
AED AED
43,643,167 35,920,581
26,963,018 30,513,345
94,190,783 100,800,944
6,768,533 7,061,688
171,565,501 174,296,558
(7,624,602) (9,555,768)
163,940,899 164,740,790
3,186,294 3,145,140
27,529,657 24,066,325
2,838,808 2,392,353
10,476,828 9,625,835
207,972,486 203,970,443
2021 2020
AED AED
9,555,768 13,103,664
(1,931,166) 3,737,998
- (7,285,894)
7,624,602 9,555,768
Less than 90 91 -180 181 - 365 Above 365 Unallocated Total
days days days days credits
36,661,920 3,409,611 4,954,321 2,972,144 (4,354,831) 43,643,165
13,232,872 7,071,923 1,285,797 7,675,123 (2,302,697) 26,963,018
81,646,936 10,422,693 1,312,518 808,636 - 94,190,783
1,591,770 4,526,489 617,879 32,397 - 6,768,535
133,133,498 25,430,716 8,170,515 11,488,300 (6,657,528) 171,565,501
Less than 90 91180 181 — 365 Above 365 Unallocated Total
days days days days credits
25,481,364 15,764,097 3,699,055 3,793,499 (12,817,434) 35,920,581
15,880,913 10,572,113 1,477,094 5,876,851 (3,293,626) 30,513,345
87,581,901 7,143,599 3,908,142 2,167,302 - 100,800,944
4,682,106 1,616,117 387,330 376,135 - 7,061,688
133,626,284 35,095,926 9,471,621 12,213,787 (16,111,060) 174,296,558
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11  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2021 2020

AED AED
Cash on hand 22,596 22,596
Cash with banks 64,416,636 226,081,397
Statutory deposit 10,000,000 10,000,000
Fixed deposits 237,944,812 69,908,538
Less: Provision for ECL (41,475) (41,758)
Total bank balances and cash 312,342,569 305,970,773
Less: Deposits with maturities greater than three months (247,944,812) (79,908,538)
Cash and cash equivalents 64,397,757 226,062,235

Statutory deposits represents bank deposits maintained in accordance with Article 42 of UAE Federal Law No. 6 of
2007.

Fixed deposits amounting to AED 21.6 million (31 December 2020: AED 17 million) under lien are against letters of
guarantee (Note 24).

These deposits bears an interest rate range of 0.4% to 2.85% per annum (31 December 2020: 1.9% to 3.75% per annum).

Movements in provision for ECL are as follows:

2021 2020
AED AED
Balance at the beginning of the year 41,758 105,371
Reversal made during the year (283) (63,613)
Balance at the end of the year 41,475 41,758
12 SHARE CAPITAL
2021 2020
AED AED
Issued and fully paid
(149,954,112 ordinary shares of AED 1 each) 149,954,112 149,954,112

13 LEGAL RESERVE

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association and UAE Federal Law No. 2 of 2015 (as amended), the
Company transfers 10% of annual net profits, if any, to the legal reserve until it equals 50% of the share capital. Also,
in accordance with its Articles of Association, 10% of annual net profits, if any, may be transferred to a general reserve
until it is suspended by an Ordinary General Meeting upon a proposal by the Board of Directors or if this reserve
amounts to 50% of the paid capital of the Company.

General reserve can be utilised for the purposes determined by the Ordinary General Meeting upon recommendations
of the Board of Directors. The legal reserve and general reserve reached 50% of share capital during 2017.
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14  REINSURANCE RESERVE

In accordance with Article 34 of Insurance Authority’s Board of Directors Decision No. (23) of 2020, the Company
allocated an amount equals to 0.5% of the total reinsurance premiums ceded to reinsurance reserve.

This reserve is accumulated year after year and may not be disposed off without the written approval of the Director
General of the Insurance Authority

15 PROVISION FOR END OF SERVICE INDEMNITY

Movements in the net liability were as follows:

2021 2020
AED AED
Balance at the beginning of the year 12,432,468 11,256,083
Amounts charged to income during the year 1,485,970 1,724,332
Amounts paid during the year (2,266,675) (547,947)
11,651,763 12,432,468
16 INSURANCE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2021 2020
AED AED
Creditors 53,971,879 44,926,847
Reinsurance companies 76,529,620 53,214,038
Premium reserve withheld 59,064,433 66,446,345
Due to related parties 280,783 1,032,525
Deferred reinsurance commission 16,725,734 17,626,398
Accrued expenses 21,828,488 9,610,251
Commission payable 1,753,665 1,253,704
Other payable balances 11,818,849 12,282,803
241,973,451 206,392,911
17 PAYABLE TO POLICYHOLDERS OF UNIT-LINKED PRODUCTS
Movement during the year:
2021 2020
AED AED
As at 1 January 47,406,148 41,118,895
Amount invested by policyholders 15,506,840 11,411,850
Amount withdrawn at redemption stage/lapse/surrender
by policyholder (17,166,388) (11,647,338)
Change in fair value 5,788,935 6,522,741
Payable to policyholders of unit-linked products 51,535,535 47,406,148

18 BANK BORROWINGS

The bank loan is secured against the Company’s investments in debt instruments having a fair value of AED 21.9

million (Note 8) and carries an interest rate of 1 month USD LIBOR plus 0.5% per annum.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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19 NET EARNED PREMIUM

2021 2020
AED AED
Gross premium written
Gross premium written 645,802,900 578,937,547
Change in unearned premium (Note 9.1) (25,562,247) 490,155
620,240,653 579,427,702
Reinsurance premium ceded
Reinsurance premium ceded 352,640,140 319,113,524
Change in unearned premium (Note 9.1) (11,683,325) (3,349,924)
340,956,815 315,763,600
Net earned premium 279,283,838 263,664,102
20 NET INCOME FROM OTHER INVESTMENTS
2021 2020
AED AED
Dividend income 5,499,718 5,764,544
Realised gain on investments 14,048,943 6,121,892
Unrealised gain/ (loss) on investments at FVTPL 13,700,764 (686,875)
Expenses/charges on securities (1,053,978) (282,041)
32,195,447 10,917,520
21  GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2021 2020
AED AED
General and administrative expenses for underwriting operations 57,362,263 59,574,504
Others- for investments and centralised operation 16,523,000 15,559,297
73,885,263 75,133,801
The above general and administration expenses include the following costs:
2021 2020
AED AED
Staff costs 54,972,065 52,530,723
Rent 1,975,205 2,255,799
Depreciation and amortisation 2,543,731 2,360,467
Others 14,394,262 17,986,812
73,885,263 75,133,801
Number of employees at 31 December 393 353
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22 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

2021 2020
Profit for the year (in AED) 70,785,201 46,108,682
Weighted average number of shares 149,954,112 149,954,112
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in AED) 0.47 0.31

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the period by the number of weighted average shares
outstanding at the end of the reporting period. Diluted earnings per share is equivalent to basic earnings per share as the

Company did not issue any new instrument that would impact earnings per share when executed.

23 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company, in the normal course of business, collects premiums, settles claims and enters into transactions with
other business enterprises that fall within the definition of a related party as defined by International Accounting
Standard 24 (Revised). The Company’s management believes that the terms of such transactions are not significantly

different from those that could have been obtained from third parties.

At the end of the reporting period, amounts due from/to related parties were as follows:

2021 2020
AED AED
Due from related parties
Insurance premium receivable 6,768,533 7,061,688
Due to related parties
Insurance payable 280,783 1,032,525
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank 10,010,072 219,838,521
Short term deposit 18,409,770 30,174,711
28,419,842 250,013,232
During the year, the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties:
2021 2020
AED AED
Key management personnel compensation
Remuneration and short term benefits 6,500,464 6,846,280
End of service benefits 267,986 307,062
Other related parties
Premiums 83,054,186 81,425,769
Claims paid 38,968,878 24,150,721
Dividend paid 14,302,752 9,535,168
Interest income 425,781 3,140,176
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24  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

2021 2020
AED AED
Letters of guarantee 16,102,815 12,077,287

Fixed deposits amounting to AED 21.6 million (31 December 2020: AED 17 million) are under lien as collateral in
respect of above guarantees (Note 11). Guarantees include an amount of AED 10 million (31 December 2020: AED 10
million) favoring the Ministry of Economy and Commerce (Note 11).

The Company, in common with the significant majority of insurers, is subject to litigation in the normal course of its
business. The Company, based on independent legal advice, does not expect that the outcome of these court cases will
have a material impact on the Company’s financial performance or financial position.

25  DIVIDEND AND DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

At the Annual General Meeting held on 29 March 2021, the Shareholders approved a cash dividend of
AED 22,493,117 at AED 15 fils per share for 2020 (AED 14,995,411 at 0.10 dirhams per share for 2019). The
Shareholders also approved Board of Directors’ remuneration of AED 3,400,000 for 2020 (AED 1,745,850 for 2019).

26 SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes the Company is organized into two operating segments, general insurance and life assurance.
These segments are the basis on which Company reports its primary segment information to management.

Insurance premium represents the total income arising from insurance contracts. The Company does not conduct any
business outside U.A.E. There are no transactions between the business segments.
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National General Insurance Co. (P.J.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2021

27  INSURANCE RISK

The Company issues contracts that transfer either insurance risk or both insurance and financial risks. The Company
does not issue contracts that transfer only financial risks. This section summarises these risk and the way the Company
manages them.

The primary objective of the Company's risk and financial management framework is to protect the Company's
shareholders from events that hinder the sustainable achievement of the set financial performance objectives.
Management recognizes the critical importance of having efficient and effective risk management systems in place.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk
management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management
policies.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

The Company's Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the
risks faced by the Company. The Company's Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit.
Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of
which are reported to the Audit Committee.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the nature of an insurance contract, this risk is influenced by the frequency of
claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid and subsequent development of claims. The objective of the Company
is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the
principal risk that the Company faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments
exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or severity of claims
and benefits are greater than estimated. Insurance events are random and the actual number and amount of claims and
benefits will vary from year to year from the estimate established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability about
the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board by
a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Company has developed its insurance underwriting strategy to diversify
the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of
risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The Company manages risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and proactive
claims handling. The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms
of type and amount of risk, industry and geography. Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk
selection criteria, as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements.

27.1 Frequency and severity of claims

The Company has the right not to renew individual policies, re-price the risk, impose deductibles and reject the
payment of a fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts also entitle the Company to pursue third parties for payment of
some or all costs (for example, subrogation).

Property insurance contracts are underwritten by reference to the commercial replacement value of the properties and
contents insured, and claim payment limits are always included to cap the amount payable on occurrence of the insured
event. Cost of rebuilding properties, of replacement or indemnity for contents and time taken to restart operations for
business interruption are the key factors that influence the level of claims under these policies. Property insurance contracts
are subdivided into four risk categories: fire, business interruption, weather damage and theft. The insurance risk arising
from these contracts is not concentrated in any of the territories in which the Company operates, and there is a balance
between commercial and personal properties in the overall portfolio of insured buildings.
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National General Insurance Co. (P.J.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2021

27  INSURANCE RISK (continued)
27.1 Frequency and severity of claims (continued)

The reinsurance arrangements include excess and catastrophe coverage. The effect of such reinsurance arrangements is
that the Company should not suffer net insurance losses of a set limit of AED 275,000 for motor business in any one
policy. The Company has survey units dealing with the mitigation of risks surrounding claims. This unit investigates and
recommends ways to improve risk claims. The risks are reviewed individually at least once a year and adjusted to reflect
the latest information on the underlying facts, current law, jurisdiction, contractual terms and conditions, and other factors.
The Company actively manages and pursues early settlements of claims to reduce its exposure to unpredictable
developments.

27.2  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claims-occurrence basis. The Company is liable for all insured events that
occurred during the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of the contract term. As a result,
liability claims are settled over a long period of time and element of the claims provision includes incurred but not reported
claims (IBNR). The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the
cost of settling claims already notified to the Company, where information about the claim event is available. IBNR claims
may not be apparent to the insured until many years after the event that gave rise to the claims. For some insurance
contracts, the IBNR proportion of the total liability is high and will typically display greater variations between initial
estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree of difficulty of estimating these liabilities. In estimating the
liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Company considers information available from loss adjusters and
information on the cost of settling claims with similar characteristics in previous periods. Apart from internal actuary, the
Company has involved independent external actuarial valuer’s as well. Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis
or projected separately in order to allow for the possible distortive effect of their development and incidence on the rest of
the portfolio.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected subrogation
value and other recoveries. The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate information
regarding its claims exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the
final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability established.

The amount of insurance claims is particularly sensitive to the level of court awards and to the development of legal
precedent on matters of contract and tort. Insurance contracts are also subject to the emergence of new types of latent
claims, but no allowance is included for this at the reporting date.

Where possible, the Company adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required level of provisions. This provides
a greater understanding of the trends inherent in the experience being projected. The projections given by the various
methodologies also assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes. The most appropriate estimation technique is
selected taking into account the characteristics of the business class and the extent of the development of each accident
year.

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Company’s estimation techniques are
a combination of loss-ratio-based estimates and an estimate based upon actual claims experience using predetermined
formulae where greater weight is given to actual claims experience as time passes.

27.3  Process used to decide on assumptions

The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to result in
neutral estimates of the most likely or expected outcome. The sources of data used as inputs for the assumptions are
internal, using detailed studies that are carried out annually. The assumptions are checked to ensure that they are
consistent with observable market practices or other published information.

The nature of the business makes it very difficult to predict with certainty the likely outcome of any particular claim
and the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notified claim is assessed on a separate, case by case basis with due
regard to the claim circumstances, information available from loss adjusters and historical evidence of the size of
similar claims. Case estimates are reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new information arises.
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27  INSURANCE RISK (continued)
27.3  Process used to decide on assumptions (continued)

The provisions are based on information currently available. However, the ultimate liabilities may vary as a result of
subsequent developments or if catastrophic events occur. The impact of many of the items affecting the ultimate costs
of the loss is difficult to estimate.

The provision estimation difficulties also differ by class of business due to differences in the underlying insurance
contract, claim complexity, the volume of claims and the individual severity of claims, determining the occurrence
date of a claim, and reporting lags.

The method used by the Company for provision of IBNR takes into account historical data, past estimates and details
of the reinsurance programme, to assess the expected size of reinsurance recoveries. Estimates are made for the
expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not yet reported at the reporting date (IBNR) using a range of standard
actuarial claim projection techniques, based on empirical data and current assumptions that may include a margin for
adverse deviation.

The assumptions that have the greatest effect on the measurement of insurance contract liabilities are the expected
loss ratios for the most recent accident years.

An analysis of sensitivity around various scenarios provides an indication of the adequacy of the Company's
estimation process. The Company believes that the liability for claims reported in the statement of financial position
is adequate. However, it recognises that the process of estimation is based upon certain variables and assumptions
which could differ when claims are finally settled.

The Company has an internal actuary and independent external actuaries are also involved in the valuation of technical
reserves of the Company.

27.4 Concentration of insurance risk

Substantially all of the Company’s underwriting activities are carried out in the United Arab Emirates. In common
with other insurance companies, in order to minimise financial exposure arising from large insurance claims, the
Company, in the normal course of business, enters into arrangement with other parties for reinsurance purposes.

To minimise its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial
condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities
or economic characteristics of the reinsurers. Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Company from its
obligations to policyholders. The Company remains liable to its policyholders for the portion reinsured to the extent
that any reinsurer does not meet the obligations assumed under the reinsurance agreements.

27.5  Sensitivity of underwriting profit and losses

The contribution by the insurance operations is a profit of AED 41.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: AED 47.7 million). The Company does not foresee any major impact from insurance operations to the
Company’s results and expects to increase the contribution by insurance operations to the profitability due to the
following reasons:

The Company has an overall retention level of 45% (2020: 45%). The risk is adequately covered by excess of loss
reinsurance programs to guard against major financial impact.
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28  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial assets, financial liabilities, reinsurance
assets and insurance liabilities. In particular, the key financial risk is that in the long-term its investment proceeds are
not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance and investment contracts. The most important
components of this financial risk are interest rate risk, equity price risk, foreign currency risk and credit risk.

Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset,
financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements.

Classes and categories of financial assets and financial liabilities

The table below sets out the classification of each class of financial assets and liabilities and their fair value:

31 December 2021
FVTPL FvTocCl Amortised cost Total
AED AED AED AED
Financial assets:
Investment securities 241,563,770 99,962,589 14,983,404 356,509,763
Investments on behalf of policyholders
of unit-linked products 51,535,535 - - 51,535,535
Insurance and other receivables - - 174,965,795 174,965,795
Cash and bank balances - - 312,342,569 312,342,569
293,099,305 99,962,589 502,291,768 895,353,662
Financial liabilities:
Insurance and other payables - - 225,247,710 225,247,710
Payable to policyholders of unit-linked products - - 51,535,535 51,535,535
Bank borrowings - - 6,802,450 6,802,450
- - 283,585,695 283,585,695
31 December 2020
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost Total
AED AED AED AED
Financial assets:
Investment securities 201,220,783 50,850,355 14,983,404 267,054,542
Investments on behalf of policyholders
of unit-linked products 47,406,148 - - 47,406,148
Insurance and other receivables - - 176,070,712 176,070,712
Cash and bank balances - - 305,970,773 305,970,773
248,626,931 50,850,355 497,024,889 796,502,175
Financial liabilities:
Insurance and other payables - - 188,766,513 188,766,513
Payable to policyholders of unit-linked products - - 47,406,148 47,406,148
Bank borrowings - - 6,806,127 6,806,127
- - 242,978,788 242,978,788

Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at amortised cost

in the financial statements approximate their fair values.
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28  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurements

Financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition

at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Fair value as at

Financial assets 2021
AED

FVOCI

Quoted debt 48,752,650

securities

Unquoted equity 51,209,909

securities

AMORTISED COST

Investment at 14,983,404

amortised cost

FVTPL

Quoted equity 141,596,692

securities

Quoted debt 89,876,664

securities

Unit linked 51,535,535

products

Unquoted equity 10,000,000

investments

2020
AED

50,850,355

14,983,404

105,112,042

86,080,159

47,406,148

10,000,000

Fair
value
hierarchy

Level 1

Level 3

Level 3

Level 1

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Valuation
techniques and
key inputs

Quoted bid
prices in an
active market.

Net assets
valuation
method.

Net assets
valuation
method.

Quoted bid
prices in an
active market.
Quoted bid
prices in an
active market.

Net assets
valuation
method.

Net assets
valuation of
funds.

Significant
unobservable

input

None.

Net assets
value.

Net assets
value.

None.

None.

Net assets
value.

Net assets
value.

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair

value

N/A

Higher the net
assets value of
the investees,
higher the fair
value.

Higher the net
assets value of
the investees,
higher the fair
value.

N/A

N/A

Higher the net
assets value of
the investees,
higher the fair
value.

Higher the net
assets value of
the investees,
higher the fair
value.

There were no transfers between each of level during the period. There are no financial liabilities which should be
measured at fair value and accordingly no disclosure is made in the above table.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices,
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security, or its issuer, or factors affecting all
securities traded in the market. The Company limits market risk by maintaining a diversified portfolio and by
continuous monitoring of developments in local equity and bond markets. In addition, the Company actively monitors
the key factors that affect stock and bond market movements, including analysis of the operational and financial

performance of investees.
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28  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Foreign currency risk
There are no significant exchange rate risks as substantially all financial assets and financial liabilities are
denominated in Arab Emirates Dirhams, other G.C.C. currencies or US Dollars to which the Dirham is fixed.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company invests in securities has deposits and has bank borrowings that are
subject to interest rate risk. Interest rate risk to the Company is the risk of changes in market interest rates reducing
the overall return on its interest bearing securities.

The Company's interest risk policy requires to manage interest risk by maintaining an appropriate mix of fixed and
variable rate instruments. The Company limits interest rate risk by monitoring changes in interest rates in the
currencies in which its cash and investments are denominated and has no significant concentration of interest rate
risk.

Sensitivity analysis

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower throughout the year and all other variables were held constant,
the Company’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 and equity as at 31 December 2021 would
increase/decrease by approximately AED 629,923 (2020: AED 1,127,206). The Company’s sensitivity to interest
rates has not changed significantly from the prior year.

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss
to the Company.

Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit risk are:

reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities;

amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid;
amounts due from insurance contract holders; and

amounts due from insurance intermediaries;

The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of
financial loss from defaults. The Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit
exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by Management annually.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not, however, discharge the Company’s liability as primary
insurer. If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Company remains liable for the payment to the
policyholder. The creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered on an annual basis by reviewing their financial strength
prior to finalisation of any contract.

The Company maintains records of the payment history for significant contract holders with whom it conducts regular
business. The exposure to individual counterparties is also managed by other mechanisms, such as the right of offset
where counterparties are both debtors and creditors of the Company. Management information reported to the
Company includes details of provisions for impairment on insurance receivables and subsequent write-offs.
Exposures to individual policyholders and groups of policyholders are collected within the ongoing monitoring of the
controls. Where there exists significant exposure to individual policyholders, or homogenous groups of policyholders,
a financial analysis equivalent to that conducted for reinsurers is carried out by the Company.

For receivables the Company has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. The Company determines the expected credit losses on these items by using a provision matrix, estimated based
on historical credit loss experience based on the past due status of the debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current
conditions and estimates of future economic conditions. Accordingly, the credit risk profile of these assets is presented
based on their past due status in terms of the provision matrix.

Insurance receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas.
Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of insurance receivable.
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28  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk, from insurance receivables
situated outside the U.A.E. were as follows:

2021 2020

AED AED
Europe 266,674 -
Other G.C.C. & Arab countries 13,858,622 9,445,950

The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties and customers. The Company defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related
entities. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which is net of impairment losses,
represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short, medium and long-term funding
and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial instruments. The contractual maturities
of the financial instruments have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at the reporting date to the
contractual maturity date. The maturity profile is monitored by management to ensure adequate liquidity is

maintained.

Less than 91-180 181 — Above
90 days days 365 days 365 days Total
AED AED AED AED AED
31 December 2021
Financial assets
FVOCI investments - - - 99,962,589 99,962,589
FVTPL investments 203,132,227 - - 89,876,665 293,008,892
Financial assets at amortized cost - - - 14,983,404 14,983,404
Statutory deposit - - - 10,000,000 10,000,000
Insurance and other receivables 134,606,432 26,564,005 5,787,921 8,007,437 174,965,795
Bank balances and cash 302,342,569 - - - 302,342,569
640,081,228 26,564,005 5,787,921 222,830,095 895,263,249
Financial liabilities
Insurance and other payables 99,276,041 48,882,417 51,218,583 25,870,670 225,247,710
Payable to policyholders of
unit linked investments - - - 51,535,535 51,535,535
Bank borrowings - - - 6,802,450 6,802,450
99,276,041 48,882,417 51,218,583 84,208,655 283,585,695
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28  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

31 December 2020

Financial assets

FVOCI investments

FVTPL investments

Financial assets at amortized cost
Statutory deposit

Insurance and other receivables
Bank balances and cash

Financial liabilities
Insurance and other payables
Payable to policyholders of

unit linked investments
Bank borrowings

Equity price risk

Sensitivity analysis

Less than 91-180 181 — Above

90 days days 365 days 365 days Total

AED AED AED AED AED
- - - 50,850,355 50,850,355
162,518,190 - - 86,080,159 248,598,349
- - - 14,983,404 14,983,404
- - - 10,000,000 10,000,000
105,094,032 53,232,510 17,744,170 - 176,070,712
295,970,773 - - - 295,970,773
563,582,995 53,232,510 17,744,170 161,913,918 796,473,593
75,506,607 56,629,953 56,629,953 - 188,766,513
- - - 47,406,148 47,406,148
- - - 6,806,127 6,806,127
75,506,607 56,629,953 56,629,953 54,212,275 242,978,788

At the end of the reporting period, if the equity prices are 10% higher/lower as per the assumptions mentioned below
and all the other variables were held constant, the Company’s other comprehensive income and equity would have

increased/decreased by AED 15.2 million (2020: AED 11.5 million).

Method and assumptions for sensitivity analysis

. The sensitivity analysis has been done based on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.

. At the end of the reporting period, if equity prices are 10% higher/lower on the market value uniformly for all
equities while all other variables are held constant, the impact on profit or loss and equity has been shown
above.

. A 10% change in equity prices has been used to give a realistic assessment as a plausible event.

29  CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:

. to comply with the insurance capital requirements required by U.A.E. Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, on
Establishment of Insurance Authority and Organization of its Operations.

. to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

. to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance contracts commensurately with the level
of risk.

In U.A.E., Insurance Authority specifies the minimum amount and type of capital that must be held by the Company
in addition to its insurance liabilities. The minimum required capital (presented in the table below) must be maintained

at all times throughout the year.

53



National General Insurance Co. (P.J.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2021

29  CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The table below summarises the minimum required capital of the Company and the total capital held.

2021 2020

AED AED
Total capital held 149,954,112 149,954,112
Minimum regulatory capital 100,000,000 100,000,000

The U.A.E. Insurance Authority has issued resolution no. 42 for 2009 setting the minimum subscribed or paid up
capital of AED 100 million for establishing insurance firms and AED 250 million for reinsurance firms. The
resolution also stipulates that at least 75 percent of the capital of the insurance companies established in the U.A.E.
should be owned by U.A.E. or G.C.C. national individuals or corporate bodies.

As per Article (8) of Section (2) of financial regulations issued for insurance companies in UAE, the Company shall
at all times comply with the requirement of solvency margins. As of 31 December 2021, the Company is confident
of complying with solvency margins based on draft numbers.

Regulators are primarily interested in protecting the rights of the policyholders and shareholders and monitor closely
to ensure that the Company is satisfactorily managing affairs for their benefit. At the same time, the regulators are
also interested in ensuring that the Company maintains an appropriate solvency position to meet unforeseen liabilities
arising from economic shocks or natural disasters.

The operations of the Company are also subject to regulatory requirements within the UAE. Such regulations not only
prescribe approval and monitoring of activities, but also impose certain restrictive provisions to minimise the risk of
default and insolvency on the part of the insurance companies to meet unforeseen liabilities as these arise.

30 COVID-19 IMPACT ASSESSMENT

Two years ago, on 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization (WHO) declared the COVID-19 outbreak a
pandemic. Since then, daily life across the globe has changed. Although vaccination have raised hopes of a turnaround
in the pandemic, renewed waves and new variants of the virus pose concerns for the business activities. The COVID-
19 pandemic had a seismic effect on the UAE market. However, despite this shock, the UAE’s commendable handling
of the pandemic and fiscal and monetary stimulus plans has seen recovery ensue in certain sectors.

Since the start of the pandemic NGI Management has considered the unique circumstances and the risk exposures of
the Company that could have a material impact on the business operations. The Covid-19 situation has had a minimal
impact on the business front of the Company. This is primarily the result of the proactive implementation of business
continuity plans & and effective measures that were taken to ensure uninterrupted business. The Company continues
to monitor the impact of COVID-19 on its financial performance & liquidity position on a continuous basis. As of
date, there has been no significant impact on the credit risk or instances of default from the company’s business
partners.
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National General Insurance Co. (PJSC)

Corporate Governance Report of
The year ended in 31.12.2021

In order to make this report available to all shareholders of the company, regulatory and supervising bodies in the United Arab

Emirates, we have published this report on the company website at: www.ngi.ae
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c. Summary of the committee’s work report during 2021
. Investment Committee
a. The investment committee chairman’s acknowledgment of his responsibility for the committee system at the
company, review its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness
. Names of Investment Committee's members, clarifying their competences and tasks assigned to them
. Statement of number and dates of meetings held during 2021 and their dates, and number of personal
attendance

. Internal Control System
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mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness

. Name, qualification and appointment date of head of the department

. Name of compliance officer, his qualifications and date of appointment

. How the Internal Control Department dealt with any major problems at the company or those that were
disclosed in the annual reports and accounts

. Number of reports issued by the Internal Control Department to the Company’s board of Directors
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10. Details of the violations committed during 2021 and their causes, how to address them and avoid their recurrence
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Statement of the transactions carried out by the company with related parties, during the year 2021 that are

equal to 5% or more of the company's capital

. Statement of Emiratization percentage in the company at the end of 2019, 2020 and 2021

Statement of innovation projects and initiatives carried out by the company or being developed during 2021
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Corporate Governance Practices:

1) The method in which the company applies the principles provided for in the Chairman of the Authority’s
Board of Directors’ Decision No. (3 / Chairman) of 2020 concerning Approval of public joint-stock
companies Governance Guide and its amendments: -

The board of directors of National General Insurance Co. (PJSC) gives utmost priority to the practices of executing
the governance controls and the Institutional Discipline Standards as a result of it compliance with the provisions

of the Chairman of the Authority’s Board of Directors” Decision No. (3 / Chairman) of 2020 and its amendments.

The Board of Directors pays also more attention to transparency of the practices of corporate governance controls
of the company pursuant to the provisions of the Chairman of the Authority’s Board of Directors” Decision No. (3
/ Chairman) of 2020 and its amendments. The Board of Directors also adheres to the provisions of the Board of
Directors of the Securities and Commodities Authority's Decision No (3) of 2000 on regulations of transparency and
disclosure. Therefore, the Board of Directors has continued to adopt the same techniques of approving and

publishing the final and provisional accounts in the Dubai Financial Market to enable the shareholders and the

concerned parties in reviewing the same as the final and provisional accounts of the company. The same shall be
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reported to the Board's committee for auditing, discussion and reviewing, then the committee shall provide the
recommendations along with the financial statements to the Board of Directors who shall review and discuss and
then approve the same before disclosure and publishing in Dubai Financial Market.
The National General Insurance Co. (PJSC), through members of the Board of Directors and members of executive
management take responsibility for proper application of corporate governance principles to achieve the required
discipline in the company according to international standards in such way achieving the interest of all concerned
parties, including shareholders and clients as well.
The members of Board of Directors have discussed and passed the necessary decisions for supervision and
management of the company activities. The following is a brief of activities and practices adopted by the Board of
Directors at the meetings of the Board and its committees:

>  Supervise activities of the company and review performance of insurance branches.

Discuss and approve application of policies and procedures and give instructions if necessary.

>
>  Review and approve the estimated budget and financial statement both provisional and financial.
>

Review investments and approve necessary investment decisions.
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Supervise the application of policies relating with human resources and verify the suitability of those
policies to achieve the work strategy of the company.
Approve auditing plans of 2021 as provided by the internal control department of the company.
Abide by the transparency and make the shareholders acquainted with the performance statements of
the company within the time schedules approved for this purpose. The Board of Directors shall report
its recommendations to the shareholders regarding the profit distribution for the financial year ended
in 31.12.2021 during the Annual General Meeting to be held on 31.03.2021.
The company's Board of Director wants to get the confidence of the shareholders, customers, employees of the
company and the associated Companies of National General Insurance Company. Therefore, the Board of Directors
believes in the importance of stating responsibilities of the company internally and externally to ensure performance

of business activities according to the provisions of the applicable laws and performance as per quality standards

with the objective of maximizing, maintaining thereby and protecting the interests of the shareholders of the

company. The company has been keen on strict compliance with the provisions of the Chairman of the Authority’s

Board of Directors’ Decision No. (3 / Chairman) of 2020 and its amendments by establishing the following practices:
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* The Board is keen on holding four meetings during 2021 according to the provisions of the decision.
» The Board ensures that the majority of the Board's members have attended the meetings to assert the validity
the required quorum.
The Board is informed by the Securities and Commodities Authority's Decision issued during 2018 regarding the
amendments of transparency and disclosure regulations and amendments of institutional governance system.
The Board's committee for Nomination and Remuneration ensured fulfillment of the requirements of the corporate
governance system which requires the number of the independent members must not be less than one-third of the

Board's members and the independent member may not be an employee with any parties associated with the

company during the last two years.

The Board' committee for auditing held four meeting during 2021 i.e. one meeting per three months. The committee
is keen on discussing all reports submitted by the internal control department. In 2021, the committee also discussed
the financial statements of 2021 and the report of external auditors for the same year. The committee also discussed

the provisional financial statements before submitting them with the recommendations to approve the same by the
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Board of Directors, thus, making them available to the shareholders through distributing them at Dubai Financial
Market.
The Board's committee for Nomination and Remuneration held four meetings during 2021 while the Board's
committee for Investment held eight meetings during 2021.
The members of Board of Directors has received the governance report of the company of 2021 and the members
knew that the governance report of the company of 2021 is distributed on the website of the company on the internet
and on DFM website, in accordance with the requirements of the Chairman of the Authority’s Board of Directors’
Decision No. (3 / Chairman) of 2020 and its amendments, that the annual report of governance of the company
must be available to the shareholders and all concerned parties of the company.

2) Statement of ownership and transactions of Board of Directors' members and their spouses, their children

in the securities of the company during 2021: -

The company adopted the approved rules and procedures for regulating the transactions of the Board of Directors'

members and employees of the company and all well-informed persons in the securities issued by the company,

parent company, associated companies or sister companies in accordance with the provisions of the Chairman of
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the Authority’s Board of Directors” Decision No. (3 / Chairman) of 2020 concerning Approval of public joint-stock

companies Governance guide and its amendments.

The Board of Directors' members asserts their full commitment with the rules of regulating the transitions of the

well-informed persons by not dealing in the securities issued by the company, parent company, associated

companies or sister companies whether by himself or by other during the following periods:

— Before ten days of the announcement of any essential information expected to affect the share price.

— Before fifteen days of the end of the financial period whether annual, semiannual or quarterly till the

disclosure of the financial statements.

a) The Board of Director's members shall report the names of persons owning 5% and more of the company shares

whether by themselves or with their minor children while ensuring doing this obligation each time the

shareholding reaches 1% over the rate of 5% of the company shares.

b) The Internal Control Management shall follow the discussions of the board director members and the informed

employees.
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c) The company shall report the share number owned by the Board of Director member to the authority during

(15) tifteen days after becoming a member and at the end of each financial year and regarding all circulation

operations done by the Board of Directors' members and the executive management of the company,

d) Each member shall report if his ownership by himself or in conjunction with his minor children reaches or

exceeds 10% of the securities issued by the company.

Position/
Name
Kinship

Owned shares as

on 31/12/2021

Total Sale

Total

Purchase

H.E Hamad Mubarak Buamim Chairman

Nil

Nil

Nil

Mr. Adel Mohammed Saleh Al Zarouni Vice Chairman

952,917

Nil

Nil

Spouse ===

10,000

Nil

Mr. Khalid Jassim Bin Kalban Member

Nil

Nil

Mr. Hesham Abdulla Al Qassim Member

Nil

Mr. Salah Mohamed Amin Abdulla Member

Nil
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06 | Mr. Saod Mohd Ibrahim Obaidalla Member Nil

07 | Mr. Jamal Ahmad Al Matari Member Nil i Nil

08 | Mr. Ali Fardan Ali Al Fardan Member i i Nil

09 | Mr. Mohamed Saif Darwish Al Ketbi Member Nil Nil Nil

In this regard, we would assure that there are no transactions done by the Board of Directors' members and their

spouses, their children in the shares of the company during 2021.

3) Board of Directors Formation
a. Formation of the current Board of Directors: As per the corporate governance control requirements, the
Board of Directors is formed in a balanced way as it consists of members with technical skills and
experiences. As per the corporate governance control requirements, the Board of Directors of the National
General Insurance Company consists of four independent members and two non-executive members, and

one chair is kept empty for a Lady: - members of the Board of Directors for 2021:

Februarv 2022




National General Insurance Company (PJSC)
Corporate Governance Report for the year 2021

(c.p.u aolellcal ol ill a yihg 1l & S5y xll
NATIONAL GENERAL INSURANCE CO. (PJSO)

.“““ P Y

THE EMIRATES

Experience

Qualifications

Period stayed
as a member in
the company's

Board of
Directors

Titles in any
contrail,
governmental
or commercial
bodies

Memberships and titles held in any
joint stock companies

H.E Hamad
Mubarak
Buamim
Chairman

Non-
executive
Director

General Manager
of Dubai Chambers

Master's in
Business
Administration with
honor from University
of Missouri-Kansas City
in 2002, bachelor of
math and  electric
engineering from
California in 1996

degree

Appointment
date: 28.03.2011

(11 years)

Board of Director of Dubai Islamic
Bank

Chairman of Dubai Multi Commodities
Centre Authority

Mr. Adel
Mohammed
Saleh Al
Zarouni -
Deputy
Chairman of
the Board

Independent
Director

Managing Director
for Rivoli
Companies Group

Bachelor of Commerce

Appointment
date: 17.04.2001

(21 years)

Deputy Chairman of Taleem Company
Deputy Chairman of Golf Federation
and Secretary General of Arab Golf

Federation

Directors of Autism Center

Directors of Azur Properties
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Mr.
Jassim
Kalban
Director

Khalid

Bin

Independent
Director

35 Years in
Investment field:

- Real Estate

- Financial

- Industrial

Bachelor of
administration sciences
- Metropolitan
university - Denver -
Colorado -  United
States of America

Appointment
date: 17.04.2001

(21 years)

Chairman of Al Mal Capital

Vice Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of Dubai Investment (PSC)

Board Director of Al Mal REIT

Board Director of Arcapita Group -
Bahrain

Mr.
Abdulla
Qassim

Director

Hesham

Al

Non-
executive
Director

chairman
managing
of

NBD

Deputy
and
director
Emirates
Bank PJSC

Master’'s  degree  of
international business
Administration,
graduate of
Mohammed Bin Rashid
University for
development of
leadership skills and
holds a certificate of
finance and banks

Appointment
date: 26.03.2013

(8 years & 5
months)

Chairman of Emirates Islamic bank.

Chairman of Deniz Bank A.S Turkey,
owned by Emirates NBD

Vice Chairman and Managing Director
of Emirates NBD Bank PJSC

Vice Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of Wasl Asset Management
Group
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Chairman of Emirates Institute for
Banking and Financial Studies and
Dubai Sports Est and Deputy Chairman
of Dubai Autism Center

Mr. Salah
Mohamed
Amin
Abdulla
Director

Non-
executive
Director

CEO of Emirates
Islamic Bank

Bachelor of
International Business

Appointment
date: 04.09.2014

(7 years)

Director of Emirates for Financial
Services

Director of Emirates NBD Bank for
Properties

Mr.
Mohd
Ibrahim
Obaidalla -
Director

Saod

Independent
Director

Deputy CEO of
Emirates NBD
Bank

Bachelor

Appointment
date: 20.03.2016

(5 years & 5
months)

Director of Dubai World Trade

Mr.
Ahmad
Matari

Jamal
Al

Non-
executive
Director

Head of Private
banking in
Commercial Bank
of Dubai

High  Diploma in
Marketing

Appointment
date: 20.06.2018

(3 years & 8
months)

Mr. Ali
Fardan Ali Al
Fardan -
Director

Independent
Director

CEO of First
Investor LLC

Bachelor of Science in
Management and
Information System

Appointment
date: 12.10.2021

(4 months)

Chairman of Al Fardan Group

Managing Director of Al Fardan Real
Estate

Februarv 2022




National General Insurance Company (PJSC) _
Corporate Governance Report for the year 2021 INVE=FH

(e .p.ub aolell al ol ill & yihg 11 & <y xll
NATIONAL GENERAL INSURANCE CO. (PJSO)

.“““ P Y

THE EMIRATES

Board Member of Dubai Investment
(PJSC)

Board Member of Al Mal Capital

Board Member of CBD

Mr. Mohamed | Independent | Director Bachelor's Degree in| Appointment |Board Member of Dubai Investment
Saif Darwish | Director Investment business administration | date: 12.10.2021 | (PJSC)

Al Ketbi- Business Majoring in Business
Director Development, Management (4 months) Board member of Al Mal Capital PSC
Darwish Bin
Ahmed & Sons Board Member of AHI Carrier FZC
LLC

b. Statement of woman representation in Board of Directors of 2021:

The Board of Director of National General Insurance Co. has no woman Board Member during 2021.

c. Statement of the reason for the absence of any female candidate for the Board Membership:
During the Ordinary General meeting held on 12/10/2021, the women candidate was not elected by the
shareholder, However, as per SCA recommendation, one chair was kept empty for a woman until the next Board

Election to be held in 2022.
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1.Total remuneration of Directors paid for 2020: Directors have received AED 3,400,00 in 2021 as financial reward.

2. Total remuneration of Directors proposed for 2021 and it will be discussed for approval at the Annual General

Meeting: According to the article no. 38 of the Article of Association of the company, the remuneration of the

company's Board of Directors shall be a percentage of the net profit. The Director shall be compensated from time

to time against all expenses incurred during performance the company business, his work in whatsoever committee

or exerting any special efforts or doing any additional works to serve the company beyond his normal duties being

a director while the Board of Directors shall determine such amounts from time to time. The Board of Directors has

not yet proposed the remuneration of Directors for the year 2021.

3- Statement of attendance allowances received by the Board Members for committees of the Board of the

Directors for the financial year of 2021 according to the following schedule:
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Attendance allowances for committees of the Board of the Director

Name

Audit Committee Allowance Value Meetings number

Mr. Khalid Bin Kalban Head of Committee 66000 4
Mr. Hesham Abdulla Al Qassim Vice Head 45333 3
Mr. Saod Mohd Ibrahim Obaidalla Member 45333 3
Mr. Ali Fardan Ali Al Fardan Member 16500 1

Attendance allowances for committees of the Board of the Director

Nomination and Allowance Value Meetings number
Remuneration Committee

Mr. Adel Mohammed Saleh Al Zarouni Head of Committee 66000
Mr. Hesham Abdulla Al Qassim Vice Head 45333
. Salah Mohamed Amin Abdulla Member 45333
. Ali Fardan Ali Al Fardan Member 16500
. Mohamed Saif Darwish Al Ketbi Member 16500
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Name

Attendance allowances for committees of the Board of the Director

Investment Committee

Allowance Value

Meetings number

Mr. Khalid Bin Kalban

Head of Committee

82000

8

Mr. Adel Mohammed Saleh Al Zarouni

Vice Head

74000

6

Mr. Jamal Ahmed Al Matari

Member

78000

7

4- Statement of the details of the allowances, salaries, or additional fees and their reasons, which were received
by the members of the Board of Directors other than the attendance allowances of the committees:

Members of the Board of Directors did not receive any allowances, salaries, or additional fees other than the

attendance allowances of the committees.

e. Number of Board of Directors' meetings held during the financial year of 2021:

The Board of Directors had held five meetings during 2021 as follows:

Times of Board of Directors' meetings in 2021 1 2

14 Feb 2021

v v

09 May 2021
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08 August 2021

v v v v | vV |V

07 Nov 2021

v | v | ¥ |NA |NA|NA

19 Dec 2021

v | NA [NA|NA

Details of Directors

H.E Hamad Mubarak Buamim

Mr. Adel Mohammed Saleh Al Zarouni

. Khalid Jassim Bin Kalban

. Hesham Abdulla Al Qassim*

Attend the meeting

Apologize for attend

Not applicable

. Salah Mohamed Amin Abdulla*

. Saod Mohd Ibrahim Obaidalla*

. Jamal Ahmad Al Matari

. Ali Fardan Ali Al Fardan**

. Mohamed Saif Darwish Al Ketbi**

Note:
* Resign of the Board from 31/08/2021
**Board Member elected from 12/10/2021 to complete the

membership of resigned member
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The Board of Directors held five meetings during 2021, while the Audit Committee held four meetings, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee held four meetings and the Investment Committee held eight meetings."

It is resolved that the fees of the Directors against their contribution in meetings of the committees formed by the

Board of Directors shall be in a membership fee of AED 50,000 annually per member while the fees of attending the

committee meetings shall be AED 4.000 per member for each meeting, he/she participated."

f. Number of Board of directors Resolution by Circulation issued during the financial year 2021:
On 06/12/2021, the Board of directors has issued a resolution by circulation and was adopted in the next Board
meeting held on 7/11/2021.

g. Duties and powers executed by the Board of Directors or the Executive Management Members:

Name of the Duration of
Power of Authorization
Authorized Person Authorization
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Dr. Abdulzahra
Abdullah Ali Al
Turki (CEO of the

Company)

All management and supervision work that go into the day-to-day running of the company’s | Indefinite
affairs, achieving its goals, and monitoring the workflow, including, for example: Authorization.
- Representing the company before all official Authorities, whether federal or local.

- Appoint advocates to represent the company before all courts of various degrees and types.
- Execute all agreements and transactions within the company's objectives.

- Sign and execute the Board resolutions.

h. Statement of transactions details done with the related parties and (stakeholders)

The related parties are defined according to the definition stated in the International Accounting Standard No. 24

(SAS 24) regarding the related parties. In the light of the definition, the following includes details of all transactions

done with the related parties in the financial year ended in 31.12.2021:
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Statement of Related
Parties

Nature of
Relationship

Type of Transaction

Value of Transaction

Premiums

Claims

Dubai investment Group

Shareholder

Insurance Premiums and
Claim Settlements

11,955,384

5,676,774

Zarouni Group

Shareholder

Insurance Premiums and
Claim Settlements

5,677,296

4,807,006

Commercial Bank of Dubai

Shareholder

Insurance Premiums and
Claim Settlements

27,416,675

16,438,837

Emirates NBD and Group

Shareholder

Insurance Premiums and
Claim Settlements

37,788,610/ -

11,917,611

Others

Shareholder

Insurance Premiums and
Claim Settlements

261,221

128,650

83,054,186

38,968,878
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THE EMIRATES

i. Organizational Chart of the company:

NGI Organization Structure Chart 2021 NG’

{g pushéolallal szl il &bl &5 bl
MATIONAL GENERAL INSURAMNCE CO. (PISC)

BOARD OF
DIRECTOR

Board Investment Board Mominstion of Board Audit
Committes Remuneration committee Committes
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jo Detailed statement of senior executive employees in the company:

Title

Appointment

date

Annual aggregate
allowances and salaries
Paid in 2021 (AED)

Aggregate bonuses
of 2021 (bonuses)
(AED)

Any other cash / in
kind bonus for 2021
or due in the future

Chief Executive Officer

07.02.1998

3,253,314.41

Not yet declared

NA

GM / Chief Distribution officer

07.10.2013

1,607,331.95

Not yet declared

NA

Chief operating Officer

23.10.2019

645,829.82

Not yet declared

NA

Chief Finance Officer

16.05.2021

426,150.16

Not yet declared

NA

Chief Medical Officer

09.10.2019

739,952.05

Not yet declared

NA

Chief Underwriting Officer - General

07.07.2020

627,836.22

Not yet declared

NA

Chief Underwriting Officer - Energy

02.09.2018

880,059.77

Not yet declared

NA

Audit Manager

16.09.2020

432,072.68

Not yet declared

NA

Life Manager

07.08.2018

479,590.02

Not yet declared

NA

Risk Manager & Actuary

09.09.2018

419,777.10

Not yet declared

NA

HR Manager

26.02.2013

427,209.61

Not yet declared

NA
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4) External Auditor:

a. Overview of the company Auditor to the shareholders

Ernst & Young (Middle East) was appointed as the company's external auditor for the year 2021 by the company’s
shareholders at the AGM held on 29/03/2021. EY is a multinational professional services network with
headquarters in London, England. EY is considered one of the Big Four accounting firms with multiple branches in

many countries and has achieved growth since its establishment through its offices in the United Arab Emirates,
and it provides auditing services, taxes, management consulting and financial advice.

b. Statement of the costs and fees relating with auditing and services provided by the external auditor:

Ernst & Young (Middle East)
(Mr. Ashraf Al Sharkh)

Name of Auditing office And Partner Auditor

Number of years spent as an external auditor for the company 01 year

The number of years that the partner auditor spent auditing the company's accounts 01 year

Aggregate fees of auditing the financial statements for 2021 (Dirhams)

AED 485,000/ - Including All Services
Fees and costs of other special services other than auditing the financial statements for 2021

Details and nature of other services provided Consultancy for IFRS 9 standard NA

Statement of other services done by another external auditor NA
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- The external auditor not only attends the General Meeting, verifies its procedures, and reads the Auditing Report

featuring with neutrality and independence but also It answers the inquires of the shareholders.

c. Statement clarifying the reservations that the company auditor included in the interim and annual financial

statement for 2021:

There are no reservations by the company's auditor for the year 2021.

4) Audit Committee:

a. The audit committee chairman’s acknowledgment of his responsibility for the Committee system at the

company, review of its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness:

“Mr. Khalid Jassim Bin Kalban, Audit committee Chairman, acknowledges his responsibility for the Committee

system at the company, review of its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness”.

b. Names of members of Auditing Committee and clarifying their competence and tasks assigned to them:

The Auditing Committee consists of the following;:
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1- Mr. Khalid Jassim Bin Kalban - Head of Committee (Independent Director) [Note:
2- Mr. Hesham Abdulla Al Qassim - Member (Non-executive Director) * * Ceased to be member of the committee from
3- Mr. Saod Mohd Ibrahim Obaidalla - Member (Independent Director) * 31/08/2021

4- Mr. Al Fardan Ali Al Fradan - Member (Independent Director) ** **Appointed as member of Audit committee

with effect from 12/10/2021

The Competences and Tasks assigned to the Audit Committee:

- Review the quarterly financial statements and the recommendation to hereof for the Board of Directors.
- Follow up the accounting matters which have essential effect on the financial performance of the company and

ensure the transparency of the financial reports.

- Make sure fulfilling the disclosure requirements of financial statements and other legal requirements.

- Assess independence and efficiency of external auditors and meet with them one time at minimum per year.
- Review and assess the internal control system and verify its efficiency.

- Consider the matters raised by the financial manager, internal control manager or accounts auditor.
- Review polices and accounting and financial procedures of the company.
- Review external auditing report and its work plan as well as essential enquires raised by the external auditor and

the management reply on it.

Februarv 2022




National General Insurance Company (PJSC) e —
Corporate Governance Report for the year 2021 INVE=FH

(e .p.ub aolell al ol ill & yihg 11 & <y xll
NATIONAL GENERAL INSURANCE CO. (PJSO)

- Control the company compliance with the code of conduct.

- Submit reports to the Board of Directors on the abovementioned issues.

- Review the annual and quarterly financial statements and ensure their accuracy according to the international
accounting standards.

- Ensure fulfilling the disclosure requirements.

- Assess the efficiency and suitability level of operation nature in the company and the framework of performing
the company activities.

- The committee holds its meetings four times at minimum annually with the attendance of the majority of its

members.

d. Number and dates of meetings during 2021 and numbers of personal attendance:

The Auditing Committee held four meetings during 2021, as per the below register of meeting attendance.

Details of Auditing

Committee's members

Times of Auditing Committee's

meetings in 2021
2 3 Z
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14 Feb 2021 v NA

09 May 2021 v NA Attend the Meeting

08 August 2021 NA NA Apologized for attendance
07 Nov 2021 NA v

Not Applicable

6- Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

a. The Nomination and Remuneration committee chairman’s acknowledgment of his responsibility for the

Committee system at the company, review of its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness:

“Mr. Adel Mohammed Saleh Al Zarouni, Nomination and Remuneration committee Chairman acknowledges his
responsibility for the Committee system at the company, review of its work mechanism and ensuring its

effectiveness”.

b. Names of Nomination and Remuneration Committee's and clarifying their competence and assignments:
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of the following;:
1- Mr. Adel Al Zarouni - Head of Committee (Independent Director)
2- Mr. Hesham Abdulla Al Qassim - Member (Non-Executive Director) *

3- Mr. Salah Mohamed Amin Abdulla - Member (Independent Director) *

4- Mr. Al Fardan Ali Al Fradan - Member (Independent Director) **
5- Mr. Mohamed Saif Darwish Al Ketbi - Member (Independent Director) **

Note:

* Ceased to be member of the committee
from 31/08/2021

**Appointed as member of Nomination and
Remuneration committee with effect from

12/10/2021

The Competences and Tasks assigned to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

- Ensure the independence of independent members at all times. If the committee finds a member lacked

the independence terms, it must refer the matter to the company's Board of Directors. The Board of Directors

must notify the member with the justifications of lacking independence by a registered mail on his address

available at the company.

- The member must respond to the Board of Directors within fifteen days of his notification date. And

the Board of Directors passes a decision stating the member as independent or dependent in the first
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subsequent meeting after the member response or elapsing the period referred to in the previous paragraph
without response.

- If the independence loss does not violate the minimum limit of the number of independent members
in the Board of Directors, it must consider this fact in the committee formation.

- Without prejudice to the provision of the article no. 102 of the business companies act, if the Board of
Directors' decision states losing the reasons or justifications of the member's independence and affects the
minimum limit of percentage of independent members to be achieved inside the Board of Directors, the
company's Board of Directors will appoint an independent member instead of such member provided that
the new member appointment will be discussed in the first general meeting of the company in order to
consider the approval of the Board of Directors' decision.

- Periodically review the decisions and instructions issued from time to time on governance controls and

submit the recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding changes it deem:s fit.

- Supervise the process of preparing and approving the governance procedures directory in the

company.
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- Raise awareness level of the directors and executive management with governance rules and principles
and the importance of its application.
- Make recommendation of nomination or re-nomination to the membership of the Board of Directors
and its committees as well as the senior administrative offices taking the applicable laws and decisions into
consideration.
- Approve the conditions and standards of appointing executive mangers, reports of performance
assessment and deputation plans.
- Review the policies of bonuses and salaries of directors and employees of the company and submit
recommendations hereof to the Board of Directors.

Define the company's cadre needs on the level of executive management.

Review the human resource policy.

Submit performance reports to the Board of Directors on the abovementioned issues.

c. Number and dates of meetings during 2021, and numbers of personal attendance:
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee held four meetings during 2021 as per the below register of meeting

attendance.

. L . Details of Nomination and Remuneration
Times of Nomination and Remuneration

Committee's members
2 3 4
NA

Committee's meetings in 2021

14 Feb 2021

v v
09 May 2021 v v NA
v v

08 August 2021 NA

07 Nov 2021 NA NA v

7 - The Supervision and follow-up Committee of Insider’ Transactions:

a. The Insider committee chairman’s acknowledgment of his responsibility for the Committee system at the

company, review of its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness:

“Dr. Abdulzahra Abdullah Ali Al Turki, Insiders” committee Chairman acknowledges his responsibility for the

Committee system at the company, review of its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness”.
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b. Names of members of insider Committee and clarifying their duties and tasks
The company has an Insider Committee, and it consists of the following persons:
1- Chief Executive Officer
2- Chief Financial Officer
3- Chief Operation Officer
The company also provided the policy of the insider committee on the internal website in order to enable all
employees from reviewing and abiding by the policy.

- The rules and procedures set forth herein shall apply to all the natural persons and legal entities having
access to the Company information, and to all their trading transactions in the securities issued by the
Company, the parent company, the affiliates, sister companies or associates. Every natural person or legal
entity that can have access to the inside information shall be deemed as interested party and shall be subject
to the rules and procedures stated herein.

- All the persons having access to the Company inside information shall not trade in the securities issued
by the Company, the parent company, the affiliates, sister companies or associates whether in person or
through others during the following periods:

1-Ten days prior to the disclosure of any essential information that may affect the share price- Fifteen days prior to
the end of the quarterly, biannual, or annual fiscal period and till the disclosure of financial statements.
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2- The Company board members and employees shall not disclose any information that may affect the market value
of securities and the investor's decision. Neither the board members nor the Company employees may exploit their
positions for trading in the securities through undisclosed information that they might be aware of due to their
positions.

3- The Company board members and employees shall not use the Company inside information for the purchase or
sale of shares. The Interested Parties shall not cooperate with any third party to exploit the investors' inside
information to achieve private interests.

4- The Company shall inform the Authority of the names of those holding, or those whose contribution with minor
children reaches, (5%) or more of the Company shares. Such requirement shall be met every time the contribution
percentage reaches (1%) of the Company shares in addition to the (5%) percentage.

5- The Company shall inform the Authority of the number of shares held by the Company board members within
(15) tifteen days as of their membership date and at the end of every fiscal year, and of all the trading operations
executed by the Company board members and executive management.

6- Each board member or employee shall notify the Company if his / her ownership of shares, or his / her shares
plus the shares held by his / her minor children, reaches or exceeds 10% of the securities issued by the Company,
the parent company, the affiliates, sister companies or associates. The interested parties shall disclose the shares
they, or their relatives to the first degree, hold in the Company, the parent company, the affiliates, sister companies
or associates.

7- The Company uses its website to enhance the disclosure and transparency of the interested parties' transactions.

c. Summary of the committee's work report during 2021: The committee did not note any transaction that

violates the insider trading policy by the well-informed persons during 2021.
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8. Investment Committee:
a. The Investment committee chairman’s acknowledgment of his responsibility for the Committee system at the

company, review of its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness:

“Mr. Khalid Jassim Bin Kalban, Investment committee Chairman acknowledges his responsibility for the
Committee system at the company, review of its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness”.

b. Names of Investments Committee's members:

The investment Committee consists of the following;:

1- Mr. Khalid Jassim Bin Kalban - Head of Committee (Independent Director)
2- Mr. Adel Mohammed Saleh Al Zarouni - Member (Independent Director)
3- Mr. Jamal Ahmad Al Matari - Member (Non-Executive Director)

The Competences and Tasks assigned to the Investment Committee:

The Board Investment Committee (BIC) shall comprise of three members from the BOD. The BIC will act as a central
agency and shall be responsible for:
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. Establishing the investment policy and strategy for approval from the BOD. Setting the investment
guidelines in line with regulatory limits and restrictions. Periodical review of policies and guidelines and
recommend improvisation/changes according to the changing market condition.

. Recommend and/or authorize the acquisition and/or disposition of investments whilst ensuring that
investment decisions achieve and maintain investment objectives of the Company.

. Approve the appointment of asset managers to manage assets and/or provide investment advice
regarding such assets or funds.

. Reviewing/monitoring the investment performance to ensure investment returns are optimized and
risks are minimized.

J In conjunction with the Audit Committee, determine the scope of rigorous audit procedures including
full coverage of investment activities to ensure timely identification of internal control weaknesses and
operating system deficiencies.

J Assisting BOD in its evaluation of the adequacy and efficiency of the investment policies, procedures

and controls applied in the day-to-day management of its business through an audit report (either
independent internal or external) that is to be submitted to the Audit Committee.

. Review and approve the quarterly and annual regulatory reports on investment allocation and risk
analysis.

c. Number and dates of meetings and numbers of personal attendance:

The investment Committee held seven meetings during 2021, as per the below register of meeting attendance.
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Details of Investment

Times of Investment Committee's members

Committee's meetings in 2021

07 Feb 2021

25 Feb 2021

23 March 2021

15 April 2021

13 June 2021

05 August 2021

23 Sept 2021

NN RN I AN N N
NN N NN N

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

09 Dec 2021

X

9- Internal Control Department:
a. Responsibility declaration of the Board of Directors for the Internal Control Department of the company

and reviewing its effectiveness:

Februarv 2022




National General Insurance Company (PJSC) e —
Corporate Governance Report for the year 2021 INVE=FH

(e .p.ub aolell al ol ill & yihg 11 & <y xll
NATIONAL GENERAL INSURANCE CO. (PJSO)

The National General Insurance Company's Board of Directors recognizes its responsibility for enforcing the
Internal Control System of the company and its regular periodic review and efficiency checking through the
Auditing Committee formed by the Board of Directors in consistence with the Chairman of the Authority’s Board
of Directors” Decision No. (3 / Chairman) of 2020 and its amendments.

In this context, NGI is keen on keeping the accurate Internal Control System which is approved by the Board of
Directors in 2010. The approved system of the Internal Control Department takes the following points into
consideration:

1- The company shall enforce an accurate system for the internal control which is approved by the Board of Directors
aiming at developing and assess procedures of the risk management in the company and apply the governance
rules in the company.

2- The application of the Internal Control System is assigned to a specialized department of internal control after

the Board of Directors had approved the rules, powers, and tasks of the management with asserting the following:

a. Independence of the Internal Control Department in the company.

b. Integrity and neutrality of the Internal Control Department in the company.
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. Professional competence and defining the fields of auditing processes.
. The internal control procedures
. Responsibilities of The Internal Control Department manager
Possibility of outsourcing to assess the Risk Department procedures in the company.
3- The Internal Control Department reviews the company activities over the year as the annual review will based
on the following:
a. Key control elements, including the financial control, operations, and risk management.
b. Changes occurred since the date of previous review and the company ability of dealing with these changes
in works.
. Define the range and kind of the current review process.

. Revise the efficiency of the company operations on preparing the financial reports and compliance with

the disclosure and inclusion rules.

4- The Internal Control Department approved the following work mechanism to ensure achieving objectives and

plans of internal auditing works in the company.
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-Prepare the annual plan of internal control and discuss it with the Auditing Committee.

-Perform the internal control processes which cover the key insurance operations and back operations as per the
approved annual plan.

-Submit the auditing reports to the department officials responsible for each auditing operation and commenting
on the auditing remarks, thus, submit the final auditing reports to the Auditing Committee.

-The Auditing Committee discusses and reviews the auditing reports in association with the company management
and the Internal Control Department's head. The Auditing Committee is also responsible for following up
application and enforcement of suitable procedures for the risk management and keeping compliance with the
applicable conditions and laws.

-The Board of Directors is provided with the minutes of meetings of Auditing Committee and notified with the high

potential risk cases if any.

-The Internal Control is involved in assessing the compliance internal procedures and corporate governance

principles and submitting reports hereof provided that the compliance procedures aim at the following:
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-Check the company commitment with the applicable regulations and laws, especially the decisions relating with
money laundering and decision of Central Bank -Insurance Sector-.
-Fully ensure the commitment with the compliance policy approved by the company and submit reports to the

Auditing Committee regarding violations, defaults and adopted remedy procedures.

a. Name, qualification, and appointment date of department manager:
Mr. Reyazuddin Ahmad, Internal Audit Manager is the in-charge for overseeing the Internal Control function. He

is Chartered Accountant (ICAI, India) and Certified Internal Auditor (Institute of Internal Auditor, USA).

Additionally, he holds certifications in insurance (cert. CII from UK) and fraud examination (ACFE, USA).

Reyazuddin was appointed in September 2020. Mr. Reyazuddin holds over 15 years of experience in financial
services having worked in management roles across reputed organizations in advisory and insurance sector. The

Department of Internal Control also includes Ms. Sanam Jahangir as Senior Internal Auditor in the Internal Control
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Department and holds ACCA certificate from the UK and CA from UAE and internal auditor certificate from USA.

She has experience of auditing in different financial institutions, and she was appointed in this job since May 2015.

b. Name, qualification, and appointment date of compliance officer:

The department in charge by Ms. Sarah Jaafar, Emirati National, as Compliance officer since November 2016. She

holds the bachelor in E-Business administration and Certificate of Anti Money Laundering in Insurance Laws and

Best practices from Emirates Institute for banking and Financial Studies.

c. Method of dealing the Internal Control Department with any major issues in the company:

The Internal Control Department performs its reviews in line with the “Annual Audit Plan” approved by the Board

Audit Committee. The Manager of Internal Control submits the internal audit reports to the Board Audit Committee

on a quarterly basis. In line with the Board Audit Committee approved ‘annual audit plan’, the Internal Control

department reviews the adherence to the approved policies and procedures. In light of the intensive operations of
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reviewing, auditing and control, the Internal Control Department confirms that there are no forgery cases, material

violations or high potential risk cases during 2021.

d. Number of reports issued by the Internal Control Department to the Company’s board of directors:

The Internal control Department issued six (06) reports.

10- Details of Violations:

The National General Insurance Company through the Board of Directors and the members of executive

management commits to abide by all applicable regulations and acts. In such context, there is no violation noted

during the financial year ended in 31.12.2021.

11- Statement of the company’s contribution in the development of local community and environment during

2021:

The National General Insurance Company always seeks to establish the social responsibility principles and abide

by the moral principles as the company policy through its social responsibility aims at creating a sustainable value

for the shareholders, the employees, the customers and the work partners of the company by maintaining the
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business feasibility and contribution in supporting the local communities in the United Arab Emirates and paying
attention to economic, moral, social and environmental aspects in all activities carried on by the company.

In the light of the company goal on performing all institutional, environmental and social responsibilities, the
company does its best to merge the social and environmental considerations in the decision-making process and
operational practices in such way making easy to understand the direct and indirect effect on the company
operations, thus, the decision-making process may reach the highest level of competence and efficiency. The
company adopts an environmental and social policy based on the following aspects:

-Governance in terms of morals and accountability.

-Employees through preparing the ideal workplace.

-Environment through managing the effects of company operations on the environment.

-Customers through providing them with the services and experiences of the company.

Society through support and investment in the local communities wherein the company carries on its business.

-The company has participated in charity works during 2021 as follows:
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Arranged COVID 19 vaccination drive for the employee and their family members as part of the Health and
Safety initiative in Feb 2021.

Conduct Breast cancer and Prostate Cancer Awareness program, delivered by the company on 22nd

November 2021, for staff and family wellbeing.

Supporting Government in Expo 2020 and gifting the Managers and local staff “Expo 2020- VIP multiple
entry seasonal pass tickets”.

Organize voluntary Blood Donation Campaign in partnership with DHA on 26th December 2021.

Facilitate all its Employees to obtain online ICA Anti-Fraud learning program to mitigate the risk of fraud
and for certificates on learning.

Re-registered NGI on EIBFS new portal for the local employee training and development.

AML awareness annual program conducted training for employees learning and development.

Promote sport spirit by sponsoring Sports activities like Cricket and Football.

Celebrated “UAE Flag and 50th National Day” at NGI Head Office, with precaution and social distance.
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e We held “Save paper Save tree Drive”, where we have emphasized on Environment Conservation during

2021.

e Saving energy by building consciousness for the employee to save energy and water.

12- General Information

a. Statement of the company’s share price in the market (closing price, highest price, lowest price):

Month Highest price of share | Lowest price of share | Closing price
January 2021 2.200 2.200 22
February 2021 2.200 2.150 215
March 2021 No Trading No Trading 215
April 2021 2.800 2.470 2.8
May 2021 3.100 3.100 3.1
June 2021 3.050 3.000 3.05
July 2021 No Trading No Trading 3.05
August 2021 3.100 3.100 3.1
September 2021 3.100 3.100 3.1
October 2021 3.100 3.100 3.1
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November 2021 3.120 3.120 3.12
December 2021 3.200 2.800 3.12

b. Statement of the performance of the company share in comparison with the market index and sector index
during 2021:

Trading date NGI DFM Index Insurance
January 2021 22 2654.06 2017.14
February 2021 215 2551.54 2188.75
March 2021 215 2550.23 2246.37
April 2021 2.8 2605.38 2183.31
May 2021 3.1 2797.52 2239.52
June 2021 2810.56 2246.81
July 2021 2765.71 2213.56
August 2021 . 2902.97 2267.46
September 2021 . 2845.49 2201.85
October 2021 : 2864.21 2220.52
November 2021 3072.91 2265.67
December 2021 3195.91 2262.63
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c. Statement of shareholding as of 31.12.2021 (individuals, companies, governments) classified as follows:
(local, Arabic, foreign):
Shareholder classification Percentage of owned shares

individuals | companies | governments | total

Local 21.89% 77.89% 99.77%
Arabic 0.222% 0.00% 0.222%
Foreign 0.002% 0.00% 0.002%
Total 22.11% 77.89% --% 100%

d. Statement of shareholders holding 5% or more of the company capital as of 31.12.2021 according to the
following table:

Number of owned Percentage of owned shares in
shares the company capital

Dubai Investments PJSC 67,752,027 45%

Commercial Bank of Dubai PJSC 26,613,032 18%

Malika Ahmed Merdas Al Zarouni 16,416,877 11%

Mohammed Omar Ali Bin Haider Investment 12,071,432 8%

Sheikh/ Mana Khalifa Al Maktoum 7,497,705 5%

Name
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e. Statement of shareholder distribution according to the ownership volume as of 31.12.2021 as per the

following table:

Shareholding (share)

Shareholder number

Owned share number

Share percentage of capital

Less than 50.000

100

1,408,968

1%

From 50.000 to 500.000

24

4,418,834

3%

From 500.000 to 5.000.000

8

13,775,237

9%

More than 5.000.000

5

130,351,073

87%

Total

137

149,954,112

100%

f. Statement of the procedures taken regarding the investor relation controls:

Ms. Khawla Khalifa Jumaa is the responsible official for investor relations in the company and her contact details

are email: mkhalwa@ngiuae.com, Tel No: 042115865

The following is the electronic link to investor relation page on the company website:

Investor Relations - National General Insurance (ngi.ae)

g. Statement of special resolutions issued in the Annual General Meeting held during 2021:

During the ordinary General Assembly meeting held on 12 October 2021, one special decision was adopted by
shareholders, namely, the approval to amend some articles of association of the company in accordance with
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amendments to the Federal Companies Law No. (02) of 2015 by Decree No. 26 of 2020. Approvals has been obtained
by the Central Bank and the Securities and Commodities Authority and the amendments are being published in the
official gazette.

h. The name of the Rapporteur of the Board of Director, and the date of his/her appointment:

Mr. Kamal Abdel Hamid was appointed as a secretary of the board of directors on 26/9/2016, holding a bachelor’s
degree in Law and Administrative Sciences, with experience in legal and administrative affairs, and during 2021
the Board Secretary organized and attended all the meetings of the Board of Directors and its committees, he also
prepared the Annual General Meeting held in March and the ordinary General meeting held in October 2021, and
was appointed as the secretary of these meetings.

Essential events faced by the company during 2021:

During 2021, AM Best re-confirmed their financial strength rating of the company with rating (A- Excellent).

The company’s battle with COVID 19 continues. The crisis committee, HR, and administration teams have
done a commendable job to face the numerous infections to staff. IT department did also great support to
enable the staff to work remotely.

The whole of the company’s operating servers has been successfully moved to the Cloud, to protect the

infrastructure and data of the company against the Cyber incident.
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The customer service department was modified and given a new look, in response with the company’s vision

on Personal Line business opportunities.

e The company has signed with OSLO to bring best in class Pet insurance products to UAE market.

j. Statement of the transactions carried out by the company with related parties, during the year 2021 that are
equal to 5% or more of the company's capital:
- Please refer to item (4/h) above.

k. Statement of Emiratization percentage in the company by the end of 2021:

The company has sought to follow the Emiratization policy by providing all facilities and privileges to the Emirati

Nationals of whatsoever ages whether male or female. Therefore, the company has managed to achieve

Emiratization percentage as below:

Year Emiratization Percentage

2019 8.34%

2020 7.40%

2021 6.73%
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Central Bank is assessing insurance companies on a (Point Rating System) on Emiratization scoring on their hiring,

retention, and development in more critical roles. Hence, we are excelling over given target points each year

successfully. (Target points for year 2021: 57 /achieved points 68)

1. Statement of innovative projects and initiatives done by the company or still under process during

2021:

The customer service activity extended to various clusters to address the various market segments.
Multi product APP developed for various Insurance products.

Automated the compliance function with creation of digital KYC for online verification of background.
Entered contract with M/s Lexis Nexis to provide background check services.

Contracted with M/s KGISL to provide Life Core solution on Life business.

IFRS 17 project is in advanced stages of implementation.

Moved MS office and MS exchange to Cloud.

Data cubes and ADHOC report functionality introduced in 2021.

Digitalize Legal documentation and records.
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. SWG and ADHICS regulatory requirements completed.

. ICFOR standards complied with. The company will set the path towards upgrading the compliance to
COSO standards.

ICV certificate to facilitate business in Abu Dhabi’s Branch.
ESR and ESG requirements completed.
Risk based compliance initiatives introduced and completed on the life business segment.

Steps initiated towards paperless environment with EDMS upgrading.

The Chairman The Audit committee The BRNC committee | The Internal Control Dpt

Date:15/02/2022 Date:15/02/2022 Date:15/02/2022 Date:15/02/2022
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01 About this Report

NGI’s annual ESG report highlights the company’s purpose and
covers the period from 01 January 2021 to 31 December 2021. It
provides an overview of initiatives in-progress towards our
sustainability goals.

Disclaimer: NGI’s ESG report provides an overview of long term
company goals and efforts to be undertaken to achieve them. The
report contains goals, commitments, our aspirations and forward
looking statements and hence actual results may differ in short or
long term horizon. This report should not be construed as an
invitation or recommendation to transact in NGI’s shares. NGI
assumes no responsibility for any loss or damage of whatever nature
that arises due to use of this report.

Reporting guidelines: The Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) is a
widely accepted guideline for sustainability reporting. This report is
prepared in line with the ‘core option’ of the GRI standards.
Reference to GRI standard is made where applicable.

Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)

The United Nations has developed 17 sustainability goals and 169
targets in order to achieve key goals necessary to improve the overall
well being and health of the world. NGI is making an effort to align
our sustainability goals with UN’s SDGs.

GRI 102-50, 102-51, 102-
52,102-53, 102-54

Being an entity, which values best governance practices and ethics,
NGI is committed to adopt a sound ESG strategy to achieve its
environment, social and governance objectives.

The contents of this report are reviewed internally within the
organization.

In line with the requirements of the Securities & Commodities
Authority (SCA), the report has been approved by the NGI’s Board
of Directors.

For comments or queries on this report, kindly contact us at the
following:

Ms. Khawla Khalifa Jumaa (Investor Relations)

Call at
+971 4 2115865

E-mail
Investorrelation@ngiuae.com

Mis. Kamal (Legal & Corporate Affairs)

Call at
+971 4 2115890

E-mail
kamal@ngiuae.com



mailto:Investorrelation@ngiuae.com
mailto:Investorrelation@ngiuae.com
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CEO’s Message

Our second edition of Sustainability report is
presented within six months of publishing the first
one, which highlights our keenness to update our
stakeholders on our journey of sustainability. This
report  supplements our annual corporate
governance report for the year 2021 where matters
important to corporate governance are emphasized

in depth.

NGI’s efforts and initiatives are primarily directed
towards protecting the interests of our stakeholders
and ensuring long term overall growth for everyone
involved with wus. Sustainability is core to our
underwriting practices and operations.

GRI 102-14

NGI remains focused on our strategy of balanced product mix,
diversified  distribution channels, customer centric product
propositions and enhanced digital capabilities, as these will guide us to
deliver sustainable and profitable growth.

Post two continuous years of being covid affected, some sort of
normalcy appears to return with increased vaccinated population and
less severe health impact of current infections. NGI continues to
invest in efforts to keep our employees and customers safe. On-going
investment in digitalization has ensured seamless service to customers
and enabled our employees to work remotely when needed.

Stronger emphasis on governance has enabled NGI to demonstrate
increased transparency to our investors, community, and strengthen its
ties with regulators. NGI continues its commitment to further
enhancement of its balance sheet strength and solvency position.
During year 2021, AM Best re-affirmed their financial strength rating
of A- (excellent).

In the year 2022, we expect to advance further as we strengthen our
core values of sustainability and inclusive growth. NGI will put more
concerted efforts to contribute towards UAE’s long term Vision and
United Nations SDGs. NGI will continue to be committed to its
sustainability goals that will help shape a sustainable future for the
communities we serve and create long-term value for all our
stakeholders.



About National General Insurance PJSC (NGI) 24031510216

2021 marks our 40 years of providing insurance products

Vision
01 and services in UAE. NGI has always been at the forefront To pursue a reputation of excellence and trust.
About this of identifying insurance needs and developing suitable
report solutions accordingly. Our head office is located at a Mission

prominent location in Dubai. NGI is a member of Emirates To achieve market supremacy through the provision of total

Insurance Association and Dubai Chamber of Commetce. insurance solutions and dedicated premier services which will
02 . o . not only meet but also exceed our customer’s expectations.
Overview NGI is a composite insurance company, which offers a

multitude of insurance solutions catering to the requirements Core Values

of retail customers to corporates. Our diverse portfolio includes Our core values are key to the accomplishment of our mission:

property, general accidents, engineering, marine, energy, credit,

03 motor, health, group life and individual life solutions. NGI Transparency | Accountability | Fairness | Security |Service
Governance holds the license of ‘participating insurer’ from the Dubai
Health Authority, which allows the company to underwrite .
DHA’ essential benefits plan. The Company has presence Our Presence in UAE
across 4 emirates with 7 branches and 3 point of sales with an
04 extensive service outreach.
Stakeholders

NGI is and continues to be a financially strong company
with A- rating from AM Best which is a testament of our
05 commitment and financial strength. NGI maintains strong

T e solvency surplus and enjoys adequate capital base. NGI is
backed by reinsurance treaties from ‘A’ rated international
reinsurers. Our major shareholders include Dubai Investments

PJSC and Commercial Bank of Dubai.



Year 2021 — Financial Highlights

01 = Consistent growth in Gross written premium
About this over last 3 years
report = Sustainable growth in profit contributing to

increase in shareholders equity

= Strong balance sheet with total assets over
AED 1.5 Billion

" Strong Cash & Bank position to ensure

02

Overview

sufficient liquidity to finance claim payments.

03
Governance

Net Profit & Gross Written Premium (AED Mn)

Revenue 535.9 578.9 645.8

Shareholders Equity & Liabilities Bank/Cash, Investments & Other Assets

04
Stakeholders

05

Environment

Total 1173.4 1387.3

1504.5 Total 1173.4 1387.3 1504.5
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Our Sustainability Approach

= Our ESG strategy is linked with our overall business strategy. NGI is setting up a committee to strategize and oversee respective
ESG initiatives. The ESG Committee shall constitute of leaders from Executive and Operational functions.

" The Committee will be established to govern ESG matters and to ensure its effective assimilation into business operations of
the Company. Additionally, the Committee would be responsible for reviewing our ESG strategy and progress. The Committee
will monitor the progress of the various projects to ensure that the company very much remains on track to achieve its ESG
objectives. The Committee will be tasked to provide periodic reports to the Board Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

" NGIs ESG strategy is based on following pillars: Focus on overall health of stakeholders, Green Operations, Environment
friendly Investments, People, Sustainable governance.

T )\ W\ W




NGPD’s Sustainability Framework

In order to undertake the materiality assessment, we have identified/documented sustainability factors/framework:

01
About this ~ Governance Climate Risk @ Digitalization @
report * Sound governance framework To limit our environment footprint by * Implementation of solutions like
and presence of governance Board = Efficient use of energy & water, waste recycling online portals for customers, brokers, providers;
Committees/functions; = Supporting green products, reducing paper usage, * Paperless insurance policies, files, regulatory
" Code of Conduct, Whistleblower policy promoting ecological sustainability submissions
02 to ensure Ethical business practices * Secure work from home interface for employees

* Robust compliance framework in place

Overview

Climate Risk f| Digitalization

Data Privacy
: 13314 S22 : = Implemented robust
T paighs R * Periodic reviews by External I'T
G " Organized Covid-19 vaccinations . ’
overnance - ] o . Consultants
for employees, family and friends
Social Customer C D
Responsibility Joutney ustomer Journey

® Dedicated customer setrvice, 24x7

04

. . = Feedbacks are reviewed to measure
R Dlvers1ty & customer happiness
Shareholders

medical claims approval support

Inclusion

Training &
e e g
Diversity & inclusion D, development Shareholders m

" Focus on women leadership in managerial

05 ) . = Dedicated Investors relations resource
roles and efforts to ensure gender equality . o o .
. . . . ’ * Timely publication of financial information
Environment * Ensuring balanced ethnic diversity = Foll ’ P ¢ laimed
o o . e ollow-ups for pay-out of unclaime
* Pricing of products does not discriminate Tralmng & Development f vid {p pa)
i . = als dividends
based on gender or nationalities " In-house and external trainings for employees; =

. , o * Consistent increase in Shareholder's equity
® Funding for employees' sports activities
te) J



Our Key Stakeholders GRI 10240

The relationship with various stakeholder groups impacts our capability to perform sustainably and it is vital to our sustainability strategy.

01 We regularly interact with our stakeholders through various means, engagements with stakeholder group enable us to focus on key
About this  sustainability areas.
report
Customers Investors, Shareholders

* Customer Happiness Center ‘:'Q \.p’:c' * Annual General Meetings
02 = Branches/ Point of Sales = Corporate Governance Report
= Social Media Presence/ Chat-Bot

® Sustainability Report

Overview

03 Regulators
Governance Employees /
T . @ [ ® Periodic Regulatory submission/reports
Training and develop1_’nent Policy Vo B Stakeholders vg = Financial Reports
* Human Resource policy .
= Governance functions
04
Stakeholders
Society, Media Vendors, Providers
" ; [ ] @,
05 Press Releases, Dlgclosures Vo vg ® Broker Portals, Claims Portals
. = Whistleblower Policy "
Environment Vendor agreements/ Standard

[ h 1 .
NGI Website Providers contract

= Service standards



GRI 102-43
GRI 102-44

Stakeholders Engagement

Continuous stakeholder engagement and collaboration is vital to our ability to respond to sustainability opportunities and challenges.

01
About this Stakeholders Engagement Route

report

02

Overview

03

Governance

04

Stakeholders

05

Environment

Investors

-

Customers
Ig':’\\

Society

{0}
=]

Regulators

Emnloyees

Vendors,
Providers

o o
Yo Yo

Assist investors in taking informed
decisions and within their expectations

Customer feedback assists to improve our
services/product

Coordination amongst Society is pivotal in
achieving the sustainability goals

Compliance with regulations will increase
the confidence of regulators and other
stakeholder in the entity

To ensure strong and talented workforce,
tairly reward and develop

Ensure increased level of collaboration
with our vendors, providers to serve our
customers better

Annual General Meeting

Publishing of Financials & Corporate Gov. Report on DFM
and website

Press releases, Rating Exercise

Customer Happiness Center
Chat-bot
Social Media interactions (LinkedIn, Twitter, Facebook)

Covid-19 awareness initiatives

Blood donation drive

Discounted motor policies

Offering of products suited to SMEs
Employees volunteering

Compliance with regulations
Regular interaction with regulators

Compensation and benefits
Diversity and inclusion
Employee welfare and fair treatment

Fair treatment
Timely payments
Portals
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Materiality Assessment

GRI 102-47

At NGI, we are very keen to consider our stakeholders in respective stages of materiality assessment. During the year 2020, materiality
assessment was conducted to perceive stakeholders' expectations and identify key ESG risks. We intend to continue our interaction with

the key stakeholders to assess the relevancy of these material items.

To reassess the material items and our priorities, we evaluated internal and external stakeholdet’s information/exchanges, customer

feedback, employees' inputs and investors interaction.

High

O A W =

6
-
8
9

Importance to stakeholders

10
11

12
13

Low

row Importance for NGI High

High Priority

Climate change and disasters

Data privacy and Information Security
Pandemic, well being and health
Digitalization and Innovation

Talent Retention and employee development

Moderate Priority

Diversity and inclusion
Corporate Governance
Ethics, Fraud and professional conduct

Customer Experience

Low Priority

Green operations

Training & development

Sustainable procurements
ESG Investing
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01 The United Nations has developed 17
About this sustainability goals and 169 targets in order to
teport achieve key goals necessary to improve the

overall well being and health of the world.

02

Overview In order to ensure improved sustainability performance,
NGI is adopting a proactive approach to integrate ESG into
various aspects of our business. This integration will

encompass our core operations (underwriting, claims),

03 corporate governance, risk management, strategies and
Governance . : .. .

reporting. NGI is reviewing and focusing on the SDGs

earmarked by the United Nations so we can have the desired

impact via our service offering, business operations and

04 investments. Applicable and relevant SDGs are

Stakeholders  referenced in different parts of this report.

05

Environment T Ul Society, Stakeholders @ Environmental
Pg. # 14 Pg. # 20 Pg. # 32
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GOVCfnance — T()ne at the TOP GRI 102-18

As accountability and transparency is deeply embedded in our core values,

01 NGI Operates its business in line with the leading corporate governance 10 :;IESII:JE\ElII]TIES SOOI
About this practices and ensures utmost transparency in dealings with respective Reduced inequalities
HEREXS stakeholders. Effective governance is vital to sustainable value creation and { p— }
preserving business integrity. v
02 The Board of NGI oversees the implementation of corporate governance 16 PEACE, JUSTICE SDG 16
Overview practices across the Company. The annual ‘corporate governance report’ ﬁ‘lll[}lﬁm[llgﬁs Peace, justice and strong

which is published at our website (wwwngiae) and DFM’s website
(www.dfm.ae), reflects detailed elements of NGI’s governance aspects and

institutions

showcases our commitment to uphold the principle of integrity and

03

transparency.
Governance p Y

NGI’s current Board consists of six members, four of them are independent members and two are non-executive

members. Members of the Board are highly qualified and come from diverse sectors such as banking, private equity
firm, real estate developers. NGI believes in encouraging women’s participation in Board Committee, our future

Stake(})::) Iders election process will ensure steps for obtaining nominations to improve women participation.
Number of independent Members
05 Number of non-executive Members 4 4 2
Environment

Number of Executive Members 0 0 0

Number of Women Members 0 0 0


http://www.dfm.ae/

Board Oversight

The Board has put in place committees such as Board Audit Committee, Investment Committee and Nomination &

01 Remuneration Committee. These committees meet at least on a quarterly basis. There are defined Terms of References for the
About this  smooth functioning of these committees.
report

Overall oversight Responsibilities

02
Overview BAC: Review of matters
pertaining to financials,
Risk management &

Board Committee = 4 independent 5

compliance
P = 2 Non-Executive
(1% .

Governance NRC: The design and Board Audit Committee = 3 independent 4
operation qf the company’s Committee Nomination & = 3 independent 4
compensation programs Remuneration

i IC: Investment, Investment = 2 independent 8
market & liquidity Committee = 1 Non-Executive

Audit

Committee

(BAC)

Stakeholders  Risk, Investment

decisions
oversight

05 -
Environment Nomination Investment

& .
Committee

Remuneration
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Governance — Control Pillars

Risk Management

NGI has embraced a prudent, responsible and futuristic approach to manage risks. A Risk Management function
is in place to assess key business and regulatory risks including the ESG risks. The department periodically assesses
the status of actions undertaken to mitigate and report. NGI intends to identify and integrate ESG concerns into
risk management and underwriting practices.

Compliance

Compliance function reviews the regulatory compliances and assesses the Compliance status to achieve complete

adherence. Based on the ESG policy and reporting requirements, Compliance function will ensure review of ESG @

compliance requirements. Risk based compliance for AML initiated and deployed latest tech for monitoring of
AML violations.

Whistleblower Mechanism

A whistleblower mechanism is in place to receive anonymous tips or complaints pertaining to potential fraud

E or compliance violations. Whistleblower mechanism provides the whistleblower an access to the NGI’s Board
of Directors.

Internal Audit

An independent audit function is set-up and resourced with skilled employees to undertake critical reviews of
business operations, risk management and overall compliance environment. ESG being a key element under the
business plan of 2021, internal audit reviews would be focused on compliance specific to ESG initiatives.
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Effective Risk Management

NGI acknowledges the vitality of ensuring an effective risk
management strategy which is central to an insurance
company’s core business of underwriting risks. Our risk
management and internal controls are designed to ensure
that our risks are managed efficiently and etfectively and
assist the Company in achieving its key objectives.

Our balanced approach to Risk Management ensures that
we have risk framework and designs in place to address
relevant risks. The Board leads the oversight for risk
management through respective Board and Management
Risk Committees. NGI’s management team considers and
implements risk management practices across the company
with the assistance from Risk Management department.

Our Underwriting practices have been considerate of ESG
tactors and sustainable insurance practices are at core of
our operations.

NGI practices risk-based capital modelling, by which
different risks are assigned capital based on their individual
risk exposures

Few of our risk management mitigants/policies are briefed
below:

* Board Approved ERM policy in place.
= Approved Internal Control framework;

* Risk champions from different department are
identified and trained in operational risk;

* Underwriting policies and procedures for all
lines of business;

= Approved AML and Internal Audit Manual;

= Approved Anti-fraud and Whistle-blowers

manual
=  (Code of Conduct

= Approved CSR policy.



Risk Management Model

Our Control Environment ! ! !
01 NGPI’s Board of Directors (Board/Audit Committee)
NGI follows and believes in ‘three

About this
report lines of defense’ Governance model
formulated by the Institute of
Internal Auditors. t
02 , Executive Management
o . NGTI has established key control
verview

functions to monitor, consult and report
on key governance and operational risks.

JONPNY [EUINXT
(s)1oren3oy

Clear charters and reporting lines are

Finance dept.

03 defined to ensure transparency and

IManagement| Internal

(el Sy iEhiIVl independence. Risk Management Internal Audit

Controls control

. Department
measures Compliance

Internal Control Framework IT Security

04 NGI has adopted COSO based internal control framework and completed the reviews mandated by UAE Insurance Authority. The
Stakeholders company has well documented policies & procedures in place to guide business operations and ensure control effectiveness.

Strong Ethics and business code
05

NGI has defined and implemented policies pertaining to ethical conduct and transparency:
Environment

M Code of Conduct M Fraud policy = M ERM Policy B Whistleblower mechanism



04 Society, Stakeholders
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Improving our Customer Journey

Our customers as a key stakeholder group are at the center of our attention. NGI is continuously investing in resources and tools

to improve customer experience. Our enhanced focus on digitalization takes us one more step closer to our goals of customer

satisfaction. Our Call Centre, email support and Customer Service Executives are the primary contact for our customer willing to

contact us for improvement in our service offerings.

Our Call Centre for customers and
Customet

Happiness
Centre

partners to contact us for their claim Call Centre

needs or queries, 24x7 support for
approval of health claims

Customer

Branches, Experlence

Our branches & point of sales NGI Apps,

Point of Sales & [‘\
at prominent gl,,’ Wh;tstapp
o

locations

At key locations enable customers
to approach us with utmost
convenience

Social

Media
Presence

NGI has ensured presence at social media
such as Linkedln, Facebook, Twitter,
Instagram for our community to follow the
latest updates about NGIL.

service to our
customers, NGI rebranded the previous
Customer Service and replaced it with a
Customer Happiness Centre

To ensure seamless

NGI Apps can be downloaded from
Android or Apple store. These are
designed to ensure easy navigation for
claims support and policy servicing
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Making a Positive Impact

= Strength of Customer Service is 15 employees. Presence of multilingual resources to serve the customers better.

= Offering of products suitable to different segments of society ranging from Essential basic plan to comprehensive products
= Risk Surveys to improve client risk profile, suggestions to enhance risk profile & periodic follow-ups

= Reduced pricing for properties equipped with fire safety measures or constructed with fire rated materials

" Reward for safe drivers in the form of ‘no claim discounts’

= Quick approval of claims and superior policy servicing

= Timely renewal notices to customers to ensure continuation of insurance coverage

= 24x7 support for approval of health claims
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Shareholders — Wealth & Value Creation

GRI 102-5

NGI’s shareholders constitute of corporate entities owning 77.89% of the company’s overall share capital, the remaining is

owned by individuals. NGI strongly believes in creating sustainable value for its stakeholders including shareholders.

Value creation for Shareholders Dividend payout over last 5 Years

" Consistently rewarding shareholders

through our attractive dividend policy,
AED 225 Million dividend declared
during year 2021 for the year 2020

= Strong balance sheet

= 4+ 4277 AED million increase in
shareholders equity in year 2021.

" 13% Return on Equity for the year

2021.

* Healthy return on  investments
throughout the years

" Transparency in  dealing  with

shareholders and adequate disclosure

15M 18 M 225 M 225M 15M

" Board election process in line with SCA
Mandate 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Note: Year 2021 financial data is based on un-audited numbers as the audits were in progress at the date of this report compilation.

Figures in AED Million

225 M

2021
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Employees — Our Partners

GRI 102-08

NGI’s work environment and practices support employees by making sure that they possess and develop essential skills to serve
our stakeholders. The primary goals of NGI’'s Human Resource strategy are to attract and retain best talents, promote diversity
and equality. While employee well-being remains our key focus, we encourage and foster sustainable work culture, work-life

balance and overall health of staff.

GOOD HEALTH SDG 3
AND WELL-BEING
Good Health & Well
—N\/\' being
SDG 5
Gender Equality

1

REDUCED
INEQUALITIES

A

(=)

v

SDG 10

Reduced inequalities

QUALITY SDG 4

EDUCATION
\!-!l i Quality Education
DECENT WORK AND SDG 8

ECONOMIC GROWTH

Decent work & Economic
growth



Our Workforce, Diversity and Composition

Inclusive, equal opportunity and diverse work force
I o1 » With a workforce consisting of over 30 nationalities, NGI’'s workplace environment and staffing practices promote equal
out this

opportunity and derive its inspiration from UAE’ vision of being tolerant and diverse. Whilst NGI complies with the

repor Emiratization requirement, with each year we raise our bar further higher.
02 Total Employees Diversity

' # 393
Overview NGI values talent and experience along with diversity, NGI

tamily is proud of its people across 30 Nationalities.
Gender Ratio '@ @

03 N N

Inclusive Approach

Governan
orernanes 33% 67% NGI believes in transparent hiring process, all our vacancies are
Employee Age Groups advertised on social media websites and prominent job search
portals.
18-30 57
o 1830 N
Stakeholders Growth & Learning
30-45 250
Provision of annual employee performance appraisals and
learning & development ensured for employees based on the
81 ) p ploy
05 needs

Envitonment 5



Training & Development Initiatives

01
About this
report
02
Overview
03

Governance
AML & ICA, UK EIBFS Trainings Product & Technical Professional
training Portals trainings Certifications
04 AML and anti-fraud trainings for Enrolled with Emirates Institute Undertaken product and Financial assistance to
staff; of Banking and Financial Services technical trainings for employees to attain
Stakeholders Risk Management workshops portal for staff trainings employees in-house certification, e.g.,, CII, UK

or certifications relevant to
their area of operation

05

Environment



01
About this
report

02
Overview

03

Governance

04

Stakeholders

05

Environment

Employees Well Being

Health and Financial well being!

NGI while being committed to value proposition for our customers and shareholders, we underscore the importance of
our employees and their overall well being. NGI is one of the few entities with minimal attrition rates and we have
employees who are with us over 2 or more decades.

1. Health and Life Insurance

= Providing comprehensive health
insurance to
employees/dependents

= Life insurance coverage to

4. Learning & Development

* Encouraging learning opportunities, funding of
learning expenses such as CII, UK;
= Internal workshops/ trainings on risk management,

traud, AML, cyber security and periodic assessments.

o

employees

2. Contribution to Pension Fund

= NGI contributes to UAE/GCC
pension fund for our national
and GCC origin employees.

* End of service benefits in line
with regulations

5. Flexible work practices

o . = Allowing vulnerable and close contact
WE CARE cases of covid to work from home.
* Increased automation to facilitate smooth

remote working facilities for employees.

3. Compensation & Benefits 6. Job Mobility

* NGI rewards its employees with = Job mobility opportunities to employees
compensation and benefits in line across respective departments on case-to-
with industry standards. case basis;



Employee Events

Employee Events during the year 2021

01
About this NGI encourages employees to lead a healthy life and
report supports them while at the work as well.
[ Celebration of Women day at our head office. In 2021
02 female sports team nomination is collected in an effort
) to include females’ staff in sports activities
Overview )
[ Health awareness campaign: Conducted breast cancer
and prostate Cancer Awareness program.
[ Conducted blood donation drive with the participation
03 of employees and community.
Governance CBD Wecomes G employes [ Flag day celebration at NGI Head Office.
an%;e::::;‘n‘;tt.‘e;:;m » [ In-house covid Vaccinatiqn f.or our' employees and their
: dependents, contacts. Periodic covid health awareness
campaigns.
04 [ National day celebration, food, snacks and gifts
Stakeholders distribution.

[ EXPO 2020 seasonal passes to our National employees
and Managers.

05

Envitonment
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Health Awareness Efforts in 2021

Awareness Vaccination Blood Donation

‘Pink’

Undetrtaken Blood

Conducted Facilitated

donation drive in

(Breast cancer) and vaccination program

‘Blue’  (Prostrate for the employees coordination of
cancer) awareness and their dependents Dubai Health
for the staff & in-house Authority ,

contributors included

employees and g
community member

Orientation of major Regular sterilization
of the offices and
branch locations as
per Covid

guidelines

insurance policies, to
explain the
beneficiaries the

coverage and benefits




01
About this
report

02
Overview

03

Governance

04

Stakeholders

05

Environment

Our Communities OQutreach — Covid 19

= Settlement of covid-19 claims of AED 11.2 million duri _
2021 across health, Motor and Business interruption claim b

" Special motor policy discounts for our frontline heroes in fight
against Covid-19 b

" Blood donation drive undertaken in the year 2021 and contributed to
DHA’s blood donation initiatives. »

" Accountability and transparency in our overall operations, maintaining
highest standards of governance, publishing periodic financials, press
releases for important development in the company, hence keeping
our communities informed.

" Continuous communication with our stakeholders through periodic
updates on our social media handles

" Enhanced our efforts on safeguarding the environment by monitoring ’
our carbon footprint and efficient utilization of resources. in

" Adopted ESG factors in our operations and underwriting guidelines

" Our commitment to ensure a safe, inclusive and equal dppe
work environment for our employees and future recruitme

" Contributing to the local economy by value creation and «
opportunities

g job




ESG Business Operations Integration (Futuristic)

NGI shall consider the following in integrating ESG principles in NGI business decisions. This includes:

01
About this
report " Embed in decision making ESG issues relevant to insurance business, committed to responsible underwriting,
" Drive claims management in line with ESG principles.
02 " Work together with governments, regulators and other key stakeholders in the industry and community to
Overview promote ESG initiatives.
" Accountability and transparency in regularly disclosing the progress in implementing the principles.
" Work together with clients and business partners to raise awareness of ESG issues, manage risk and develop
03 solutions.
Governance

= Consider ESG based exclusions in Insurance and corporate policies.

Stakeholders

¢

Y 4
o7y W

.

) T o
f SENNES
05 58768

Envitonment
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Our Environmental Priorities

NGI being a responsible entity is very thoughtful of its impact on the society and environment. SDGs identify our

01 environmental priorities. Hence, we understand that major issues like climate change and its effect should remain
About this  our focal point. Insurers being a critical part of the value chain can play an extremely important role in making a
report positive impact on environment.

Our environmental goals and priorities are aligned with the UAE Vision to position UAE as a low carbon

02 €conomy.
Overview  RESPONSIBL INDUSTRY, INNOVATION
NSUMPTION AND INFRASTRUCTURE
=M SDG 12
Responsible consumption and production .
p ump produ Industry, Innovation and Infrastructure
03
Governance 6 CLEAN WATER CLIMATE
AND SANITATION SDG 6 ACTION SDG 13
E Clean water and sanitization @ Climate action
04
DECENT WORK AND GOOD HEALTH
Stakeholders sdlaied | SDG § AND WELL-BEING SDG 3
/\/ Promote sustainable, inclusive growth, employment Ensure healthy lives and promote wellbeing for all at all
‘l' and quality work ) Al 2ges

05

Environment




Our Efforts

01 We acknowledge the importance of minimizing the impact of our operations on environment. NGI continues to monitor its
About this  ¢nvironmental footprint and implement energy efficiency measures. The following prioritizes our efforts:
report

= Branch office spaces revisited to ensure optimum use of

. . . L)
available space, relocated branch offices. Abu Dhabi branch G feen BOX CO Ntri butlon Certlﬁ Cate ® ”

02. moved to owned space utilizing half of the previous office
Overview space
= Significant savings in usage of paper by issuing Quotations, 898 Ofset (COZe 3775 Gallons of Water Saved
Policy documents, Invoices digitally, paper-based policies are _ / \
03 used on insistence of the insured. f

SCIRISTY

meetings. Ma] Ority Of the meetiﬂgs uﬂder takeﬂ Onliﬂe 539 Kg Weight of Recycled Paper 206,62 Gallons of il 8.88 Number of Trees Saved
L. . Saved
minimizing the use of papers

Governance = DPapers are replaced in meeting rooms with on-screen

04 = Reduce our carbon footprint, manage the amount of waste This certificate is presented to National General Insurance Company

roduced from outr operations for successfully joining GreenBox community and contributing to a
Stakeholders P p sustainable Eco-System in 2021

= Constant monitoring of our CO2 emissions, power
utilization and water consumption.
@

www.infofort.com/greenbox I n fo FO rt
Daia " Tackmolmiy - Analyt

= Recycling of waste papers

05

Environment




Our Environmental Footprint

Our strategy to sustainability is considerate of several aspects of our operations including our power & water consumption,

01 . . i, .
About this carbon emissions, waste management and most importantly positive attitude of our people.
report : : :
During the year 2021, the following summarizes the result of our efforts:
Power Consumption trend ) . .
02 " Achieved 2% reduction in power
CWFRIN Reduced pover MM expense
expense by " CO2 emission reduced by 7%
Although the power consumption
22% 2020 _ remained same for the year 2021;
"  Power consumption slightly reduced by
03 0.3% in year 2021, however it is
Governance 2021 _ Power Bill expense significant as it is compared to the year
Reduction by 2% 2020 which was impacted covid
2020 t0 2021 lockdown
CO 2 emission trend .
b 1
Stakeholders Reduced carbon 2019 60
footprint @ c
220 [ 4
>7% "
. 05 CO2 emission Water consumption
Environment 2021 - Reduced by 7% Increased by 2%
2020 to 2021 2020 to 2021

Note: Data analyzed for Head Office and Branches except Sharjah and Abu Dhabi branch offices
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